Rapporter



Ragnhild Balsvik and Anne Brendemoen



A Computable General Equilibrium Model for Tanzania Documentation of the Model, the 1990 – Social Accounting Matrix and Calibration Ragnhild Balsvik and Anne Brendemoen

A Computable General Equilibrium Model for Tanzania

Documentation of the Model, the 1990 – Social Accounting Matrix and Calibration

Standardtegn i tabeller	Symbols in tables	Symbol
Tall kan ikke forekomme	Category not applicable	
Oppgave mangler	Data not available	••
Oppgave mangler foreløpig	Data not yet available	
Tall kan ikke offentliggjøres	Not for publication	:
Null	Nil	-
Mindre enn 0,5	Less than 0,5 of unit	
av den brukte enheten	employed	0
Mindre enn 0,05	Less than 0,05 of unit	
av den brukte enheten	employed	0,0
Forelpige tall	Provisional or preliminary figure	*
Brudd i den loddrette serien	Break in the homogeneity of a vertical series	
Brudd i den vannrette serien	Break in the homogeneity of a horizontal series	

ISBN 82-537-4041-7 ISSN 0332-8422

Emnegruppe 59 Andre samfunnsøkonomiske emner

Emneord

Likevektsmodell Miljøøkonomi Utviklingsland Økonomi

Design: Enzo Finger Design Trykk: Falch Hurtigtrykk

Abstract

Ragnhild Balsvik and Anne Brendemoen

A Computable General Equilibrium Model for Tanzania

Documentation of the Model, the 1990 - Social Accoounting Matrix and Calibration

Reports 94/20 • Statistisk sentralbyrå 1994

This report documents a Computable General Equilibrium model for the economy of Tanzania, the Social Accounting Matrix underlying the model, and the calibration of model parameters. The model is developed to account for effects of land degradation processes; this report does, however, only deal with the pure economic part of the model, treating land degradation as an exogenous variable in the agricultural production functions. The model describing the land degradation processes is developed at the Agricultural University of Norway.

The CGE model presented here is quite standard; producers maximise profits subject to Cobb-Douglas production functions, households maximise utility and distribute expenditure according to a linear expenditure system. The model exhibits two way trade assuming imperfect substitution between domestically produced and imported varieties of each good, and between production for the domestic market and export. Prices are endogenous and adjust to obtain market equilibria. Economic growth occurs through growth in the stock of capital, which is determined by savings, exogenous technological progress, and declines in the land degradation processes.

The model is calibrated to produce the Social Accounting Matrix with all prices equal to unity. The Tanzanian Bureau of Statistics provides a number of publications on economic data. Tanzania is however still in the process of developing National Accounting procedures, and the data available are often somewhat inconsistent as different sources often give different figures for what should be the same issue. Much of the official data are based on information from an input-output study from 1976. Furthermore, apart from the agricultural sectors, we have found no gross production figures. The construction of the Social Accounting Matrix has accordingly been a stepwise procedure, based on several somewhat arbitrary and rough assumptions.

Keywords: Development economics, Environmental economics, Computable general equilibrium models, Tanzania

Acknowledgement: The Research Council of Norway under the resarch programe "Economy and Ecology - Management tools for Sustainable Development".

Contents

1.	Introduction	
2.	Commodities and sectors	. 9
3.	Model structure	11
3.1	Production and factor demand	
3.2	Import and export.	
3.3	Private income and consumption	
3.4	The public sector.	
3.5	Investments.	
3.6	Equilibrium of domestic demand and supply	15
4.	The 1990-Social Accounting Matrix for Tanzania	17
4.1	Domestic supply	
4.1.1	Gross Domestic Product at factor cost by sector	17
4.1.2	Gross Domestic Product at market prices by sector	19
4.1.3	Gross production by model sector	19
4.1.4	Imports	20
4.1.5	Exports	21
4.1.6	Customs duties	
4.2	Intermediate deliveries	22
4.3	Final deliveries.	24
4.3.1	Change in stocks	24
4.3.2	Government consumption	25
4.3.3	Investment	25
	Private consumption	
4.3.5	Status of the SAM.	26
4.4	Additional data	27
4.4.1	Distribution of income	27
4.4.2	Sectoral investments	28
4.4.3	Aggregate income and savings	29
	The Linear Expenditure System	
4.4.5	Trade	31
4.4.6	Government intermediate consumption	31
5.	Conclusions	33
Refe	rences	35
Арре	endix 1. Model equations, list of sectors and variables	37
Appe	endix 2. Tables	41
Issue	ed in the series Reports	49

1 Introduction^{*}

This report documents the structure and calibration of a computable general equilibrium (CGE) model for the economy of Tanzania. The purpose of the model is to study the links between economic policy measures, agricultural technologies, soil quality and productivity losses due to soil mining and soil erosion, and the overall performance of the national economy. The report is a follow up of the report "Modelling structural adjustment policy and land degradation in Tanzania" (Aune et al., 1994), which gives details on the background for the present project.

Tanzania ranges as one of the poorest countries of the world; a country where agricultural production provides employment, subsistence and income for the majority of the population. Approximately 83 percent of Tanzania's economically active population are participating as smallholders, agropastoralists and pastoralists in the agricultural sector. Agriculture's contribution to GDP in Tanzania in 1991 was 61 percent (of which 10 percent is due to livestock breeding). Agricultural products serve as major intermediate inputs in the food-, beverages- and textile industries. Furthermore, in 1990 more than half of Tanzania's export revenue was from agricultural products. Exports is the basis for imports of investment goods like machinery and transport equipment, of which Tanzania is highly dependent. The dominance of agricultural production in Tanzania's national economy suggests that sustainable development within this sector is a prerequisite for sustainable overall economic growth in the long term.

A basic principle of sustainable land use is that input of nutrients should be equal to or higher than the output. One of the main nutrient inputs to an agricultural system is from fertilisers. The main loss of nutrients from the system occurs through the harvested product and by soil erosion. Calculations indicate that nutrient depletion is taking place in Tanzania (Stoorvogel and Smalling, 1990), suggesting that agricultural productivity will decline in the long term. Aune et al., (1994) discusses the present status and causes behind land degradation problems in Tanzania.

The speed and magnitude of decline in land productivity, or land degradation, depend on the cultivated crop, soil properties and whether any measures are adopted to stop or modify the process. Changes in cropping patterns and agricultural techniques will for instance affect land degradation. The Economic Recovery Programme developed by the government of Tanzania and the IMF/World Bank and carried out from 1986 and onwards, offers a profound change in the focus of agricultural and macroeconomic policies. The Programme includes measures like deregulation of agricultural producer prices, dissolving of marketing monopolies for food crops, elimination of input subsidies, increased focus on land tenure and credit market policies, and devaluation of the overvalued Tanzanian Shilling. Experiences with the Economic Recovery Programme so far suggest that the policy changes indeed affect farmer's economic decisions regarding the selection of crops, and thus land degradation and productivity. Whether production techniques in general, and the use of fertilisers in particular will change as well, is too early to tell. It is however likely that input of fertilisers, which at present is extremely low in Tanzania, will increase as further rigidities in the market are being removed (see Aune et al. for a discussion of possible and actual outcomes of the Economic Recovery Programme on this issue).

Surprisingly few studies can serve as guidelines for political decisions on land management other than specific actions at the farm level. These actions are limited to technology changes by means of information about potential gains within the existing economic framework. While land degradation is generally regarded as costly, more precise estimates of

^{*} The autors would like to thank Gina Spurkeland for research assistance and Soveig Glomsrød, Haakon Vennemo and Kjell Arne Brekke for valuable comments and discussions.

these costs have not been identified. The costs facing the individual farmer, measured in losses in yields, may be quite obvious. The true costs of land degradation are however more subtle. Declining yields will for instance normally cause prices to increase in order to restore real income among the producers. In an economy like Tanzania, where agricultural production is a substantial part of GDP, this may have severe effects on real incomes and by that also on the demand for all goods and the standard of living in the rural population. Accounting for effects like these, requires a model where land degradation and the national economy is fully integrated.

Within a CGE model framework, effects of a vide range of policy measures may be analyzed. Applications of CGE models in economic and environmental analysis have several advantages compared to more partial models. The full effect of any economic or environmental policy includes indirect, input-output effects as well as the more obvious direct ones. Analysis based on CGE models point out indirect relations among economic variables, and among economic and environmental issues. One example is effects of price policies on agricultural inputs like fertilisers. Subsidising fertilisers will increase the productivity in agricultural sectors and modify land degradation processes, which will further increase the productivity in the sectors. Income will rise among the rural population and demand for consumer goods will increase, which in a general equilibrium model will give rise to increased production of all goods. Furthermore, subsidies on fertilisers and increased productivity will most likely cause agricultural prices to decline relative to other prices, and the demand for these products for consumption, exports and intermediate inputs to increase. Changes in relative prices will further affect not only the level, but also the composition of production and final demand, which again may cause changes in for instance the rate of land degradation. What may seem like a marginal policy change may in other words, through general equilibrium effects, cause profound changes in the overall performance of the economy. Other examples are effects of trade- and exchange rate policies, income policy, and taxation policy in general. The overall effects of such measures are most clearly established by the means of a large scale macroeconomic model.

A model of impacts on land productivity from land use patterns and farming techniques is developed at the Agricultural University of Norway and is documented in Aune et al., (1994). In the present report, the economic part of the CGE model is documented. In chapter 2, the list of model sectors and commodities is presented; chapter 3 gives details on the model equations; chapter 4 documents the Social Accounting Matrix and additional calibrations.

2. Commodities and sectors

We will assume that each sector produces a single commodity. Furthermore, each commodity is produced in one sector only. This implies that our list of production sectors equals that of goods.

Commodity/Sector list

- 1. Cotton
- 2. Coffee
- 3. Tea
- 4. Tobacco
- 5. Cashew
- 6. Cassava
- 7. Maize
- 8. Rice
- 9. Sorghum
- 10. Beans
- 11. Other crops and cereals
- 12. Livestock
- 13. Forestry, Fishing and Hunting
- 14. Food and Beverages industries
- 15. Textiles
- 16. Other manufacturing sectors, Mining and Quarrying
- 17. Constructions
- 18. Electricity
- 19. Transport and Communication
- 20. Other private services

Some level of aggregation is necessary in a macroeconomic model of this type, aiming at describing the impact of land degradation on agricultural production. The 11 agricultural sectors are suitable for approaching the various technological and ecological dimensions; the sector list is consistent with the one used in the 1976 input-output matrix developed for Tanzania (Komba and Wagao, 1986). As it stands, the commodity/sector list is an aggregate of the sector defenition in the 1976 input-output matrix, with the exception that we treat cassava and sorghum separately in our model, whereas these two crops are included in "other crops" in the 1976-matrix.

The sectors 13-Forestry, Fishing and Hunting, 17-Constructions, 19-Transport and Communication and 20-Other private services, are Tanzanian National Account sectors or aggregates of NA sectors (Bureau of Statistics, 1993a). The industrial sectors 14-16 are sub-sectors of the NA sector "Manufacturing". We have chosen to disaggregate the manufacturing sector in order to compute general equilibrium effects of changes in the supply of agricultural products which are important intermediate inputs in the sectors 15-Textiles and 14-Food and Beverages. Furthermore, our sector 18-Electricity, is a subsector of the NR sector "Electricity and Water". We have treated electricity separately to facilitate future use of the model for fuel/energy analyses.

Only two of our model commodities will be classified as investments goods. One is the good produced in sector 17-Constructions (buildings etc.). The second is the good produced in sector 16-Other manufacturing industries, Mining and Quarrying, and is an aggregate of capital goods like machinery and vehicles, plus all capital classified in statistical publications as "other". In principal, all commodities can be imported and exported, used as intermediates in production, or as public and private consumption. All sectors are assumed to be private. A number of parastatal enterprises still exists in practically all sectors, but these are at present being privatised.

3. Model structure

The model is a fairly standard, static, computable general equilibrium-model for an open economy. The general model structure, refered to as an "elasticity structuralist CGE-model", is discussed in Robinson (1989). The core of the model is the Social Accounting Matrix (SAM) documented in the next chapter. Around this core are the relations describing the behaviour of the different sectors of the economy. Our choices on how to model this behaviour are limited by the available data, discussed below and in Aune et al. (1994). We make the assumption that producers maximise profits and households maximise utility. Quantities are endogenous, as are relative prices which adjust to obtain market equilibria (except for in the labour market). The exogenous exchange rate serves as the numeraire.

As information regarding labour supply in Tanzania is scarce, we do not intend to model the labour market in any detail. One option is then to treat labour supply as exogenous and nominal wages as endogenous. In this framework, wages will adjust to secure equilibrium in the labour market as well. Our choice is however to treat nominal wages as exogenous; the labour market will not necessarily be in equilibrium. Furthermore, the model does not include any assets. For a discussion of the choice of a CGE modelling framework and its appropriateness for the present and future Tanzanian economy, see Aune et al., (1994).

In the equations below, the subscript j runs over the complete list of commodities/sectors (j=1-20), if nothing else is stated.

3.1 Production and factor demand

Agricultural gross production $(X_j, j=1-11)$ is produced according to Cobb-Douglas, constant returns to scale production functions, subject to exogenous, factor neutral technological changes (B_j) . All agricultural sectors are assumed to use labour (L_j) , fertilisers (F_j) and material inputs other than fertilisers (M_j) . Material inputs are applied in fixed proportions to output. The sectors 2-Coffee, 3-Tea, 4-To-

bacco, 5-Cashew and 7-Maize use real capital (K_j) as well. The production function for these sectors is given by

(1)
$$X_j = B_j S_j L_j^{\alpha_j} K_j^{\beta_j} F_j^{1-\alpha_j-\beta_j}$$
,

$$(2) \quad M_j = X_j \sum_i a_{ij} ,$$

where j = 2-5,7, α_j is the cost share of labour and β_j is the cost share of capital. a_{ij} is the fixed input-output coefficient; the fixed inputs of good *i* per unit output of good *j*.

Agricultural production is affected by land degradation processes. The variable S_j accounts for changes in productivity per unit arable land due to changes in soil quality. In the complete model, S_j is a function of the use of fertilisers and volume of production. The model describing the determination of the S_j - variables is described in Aune et al. (1994). In this report, it will be treated as exogenous.

Investments in the agricultural sectors are assumed to be in fixed proportions to total investments, which we will return to in paragraph 3.5. To the individual farmer, the stock of capital is fixed, and only inputs of labour and fertilisers are freely determined by the producers. We do however need to define the price of real capital which is a fixed coefficient aggregate of the price of the commodities 16-Manufacturing and 17-Constructions, as these are the only goods in our model delivered for investment purposes;

$$(3) \quad PK_j = \sum_s PC_s \ b_{sj} \ ,$$

where s = 16, 17. PC_j is the composite price og commodity *j*, defined in equation (14) below. b_{sj} is a fixed coefficient measuring the share of commodity s of sector *j*'s investments. The farmers apply labour and fertilisers to maximise profits. The first order conditions to the maximisation problem is given by 1^{1}

(4)
$$W_j L_j = X_j \alpha_j (P_j - \Sigma_i a_{ij} PC_i)$$
,
(5) $PC_{16}(1 + TF_j) F_j = X_j(1 - \alpha_j - \beta_j) (P_j - \Sigma_i a_{ij} PC_i)$,

where j=2-5,7, W_j is the exogenous wage rate, P_j is the producer price on gross production defined in equation (17) and PC_{16} is the price of the composite commodity 16-Manufacturing, which is fertilisers when delivered to the agricultural sectors. The sales tax rate TF_i is included to allow the model user to differentiate subsidies or taxes on fertilisers between the sectors. PC_i is the composite price of other intermediate inputs.

In the agricultural sectors 1-Cotton, 6-Cassava, 8-Rice, 9-Sorghum, 10-Beans and 11-Other crops and cereals, the use of real capital is very low, or nonexistent. We assume there is no capital in these sectors, which gives the production function

(6)
$$X_j = B_j S_j L_j^{\alpha_j} F_j^{1-\alpha_j},$$

where j=1,6,8-11. The use of intermediate inputs other than fertilisers is as given by (2), and the first order conditions determining demand for labour and fertilisers by (4) and (5) (with $\beta_i = 0$).

The non-agricultural sectors (j=12-20) use labour, real capital and intermediates as inputs. Gross production is a constant returns to scale Cobb-Douglas function of labour and real capital, given that inputs of materials is applied in fixed proportions to output;

$$(7) \quad X_j = B_j L_j^{\alpha_j} K_j^{1-\alpha_j}$$

 $(8) \quad M_j = X_j \Sigma_i a_{ij} ,$

where j = 12-20, i = 1-20.

Input of labour and real capital are determined by profit maximisation, giving the first order conditions

(9)
$$W_j L_j = X_j \alpha_j (P_j - \Sigma_i a_{ij} PC_i)$$
.

(10)
$$PK_j (R + \delta_j) K_j = X_j (1 - \alpha_j) (P_j - \Sigma_i a_{ij} PC_i)$$

We define the left hand side of (10) as the user cost of capital, where PK_j is the price of real capital, R is the rate of return to capital and δ_j is the depreciation rate of real capital. The price of real capital is given by (3).

3.2 Import and export

Tanzania may be classified as a small open economy, where several goods are subject to international trade. Although trade may be extensive, the small economy assumption implies that the country still is without influence upon the international markets, and that world market prices are unaffected by Tanzanian actions. Accordingly, Tanzanian traders are assumed to be price takers at the world market; commodities can be bought and sold at constant world prices;

(11)
$$PI_i = PW_i ER (1 + TI_i)$$
,

where PI_j is the price of imports in the domestic market, PW_j is the world market price, TI_j is the import tax and ER the exchange rate. The price on exports is determined similarly;

(12)
$$PA_i (1 + TA_i) = PW_i ER$$
,

where PA_j is the export price that faces the producer and TA_j denotes the export tariff that adds to the producer price when the good faces the markets abroad.

To mirror observed phenomena and at the same time avoid that the price-taking-assumption will lead to extreme specialization whenever the price ratio between the world price and domestic price changes, product differentiation is assumed (see for instance de Melo and Robinson (1989)). This

1 Profits (Π) is given by

⁽I) $\Pi_{j} = P_{j}B_{j}S_{j}L^{\alpha_{j}}K^{\beta_{j}}F_{j}^{1-\alpha_{j}-\beta_{j}} - W_{j}L_{j} - PK_{j}(R+\delta_{j})K_{j} - F_{j}(1+TF_{j})PC_{16} - X_{j}\Sigma_{i}a_{ij}PC_{i},$

where R is the rate of return and δ_j the rate of depreciation of capital. Maximising (I) with respect to L_j and F_j and substituting X_j from (1) in the first order conditions give the demand for labour and fertilisers in (4) and (5) respectively.

treatment of trade is widely used in CGE modelling. It implies that imports and domestically consumed goods are assumed to be imperfect substitutes (the Armington assumption), as are exports and goods sold at the domestic market. Product differentiation may occur due to differences in quality or costs associated with entering foreign markets, and is particulary suitable in models with large commodity aggregates.

On the import side, product differentiation leads to the introduction of composite goods (XC_j) , which are aggregates of domestic and imported varieties of each good (denoted by XD_j and I_j respectively). The price ratio between the two varieties determines the ratio between imported and domestically produced goods. Following the Armington assumption, the aggregation function is a CES formulation;

(13)
$$XC_j = Q_j \left[q_j I_j^{\tau_j} + (1 - q_j) XD^{\tau_j} \right]^{-\frac{1}{\tau_j}}$$

where Q_j is a shift variable, q_j is the share parameter and τ_j indicates the elasticity of substitution, ε_j ;

$$\varepsilon_j=rac{1}{1+\tau_j}.$$

The smaller the elasticity of substitution, the "less tradable" is the good.

Given the prices on the two varieties, the value of the composite good is defined by

(14)
$$PC_j XC_j = PD_j XD_j + PI_j I_j$$
.

The buyers of the goods seek to minimise the cost of purchasing a given quantity, given by (14). Minimising (14), subject to the aggregation function (13) gives the first order conditions determining the ratio of imports to domestic production;

(15)
$$\frac{I_j}{XD_j} = \left[\frac{PD_j}{PI_j} \frac{q_j}{(1-q_j)}\right]^{\varepsilon_j}$$

On the export side, output of each good is supplied to the domestic or foreign market. Goods are allocated to exports (A_j) and domestic markets according to a constant elasticity of transformation (CET) function;

(16)
$$X_j = H_j \left[h_j A_j^{\rho_j} + (1 - h_j) X D_j^{\rho_j} \right]^{\frac{1}{\rho_j}},$$

where H_j is a shift variable and h_j is the share parameter. ρ_i indicates the elasticity of transformation;

$$\Omega_j = \frac{1}{\rho_j - 1} \, .$$

The elasticity Ω_j measures the responsiveness of the ratio between exports and domestic sales to changes in the marginal rate of transformation.

The net value of sale is

$$(17) P_j X_j = PD_j(1 - TS_j) XD_j + PA_j A_j.$$

The producers choose the ratio of exports to domestic supply that maximises the total value of sale in the two markets, given by (17). Maximising (17) subject to (16) gives the first order condition determining the ratio of exports to domestic sales;

(18)
$$\frac{A_j}{XD_j} = \left[\frac{PA_j}{PD_j (1-TS_j)} \frac{(1-h_j)}{h_j}\right]^{\Delta_j}.$$

The smaller the elasticity of transformation, the more imperfect substitutes are the exported and domestically produced goods. The parameters are calibrated to produce the initial quantities as they appear in the SAM. This is documented in paragraph 4.4.5.

3.3 Private income and consumption

Private income consists of wages and returns to capital, plus possible profits in the agricultural sectors 2-5,7 that use real capital; as gross investments in these sectors are assumed to be in fixed proportions to total investments, the use of capital is not necessarily optimal and the zero-profit condition does not necessarily hold. Furthermore, as we have assumed that all sectors of production are private, possible returns to capital within the public enterprises is included in these private sectors. We do, however, allow the public sector to employ labour for public administration etc. Total private income thus consists of wages and returns to capital in all sectors of production plus wages in the public sector plus profits in the agricultural sectors that use real capital. Disposable private income (Y) is given by

$$Y = (1 - TY) \left[\sum_{m} W_{m}L_{m} + W_{G}L_{G} + \sum_{i} PK_{i}R \cdot K_{i} \right]$$

(19)
$$+ \sum_{k} (X_{k} (P_{k} - \sum_{j} a_{jk}PC_{j}) - PC_{16}F_{k} - \delta_{k}K_{k}) ,$$

where m = 1,6,8-20; i = 12-20; k = 2-5,7; j = 1-20. W_GL_G is income earned by public employees and *TY* is the income tax rate.

Total private expenditure (E) is assumed to be a constant part of disposable income;

(20) E = cY,

where c is the marginal propensity to consume. Private expenditure is allocated between the commodities according to a linear expenditure system $(LES)^2$

(21)
$$PC_j C_j = PC_j \gamma_j + \kappa_j (E - \Sigma_i PC_i \gamma_i)$$
.

Calibration of the parameters in (21) is documented in paragraph 4.4.4. We follow the tradition of interpreting the γ -parameters as minimum, or subsistence, quantities; $PC_{j}\gamma_{j}$ is the minimum expenditure on commodity j and $\Sigma_{i}PC_{i}\gamma_{i}$ the total minimum expenditure of which no substitution is possible. The κ -parameters add to unity, and may thus be interpreted as constant budget shares, applied on non-subsistence expenditure. Expenditure on each good accordingly consists of a subsistence part and a non-subsistance part.

3.4 The public sector

Government revenue is determined by revenues from taxes on income and sales, and tariffs on import and export;

$$GR = \sum_{j} (TS_{j}PD_{j}XD_{j} + TA_{j}PA_{j}A_{j} + TI_{j}PW_{j}I_{j}ER)$$

+TY $\left[\sum_{m} W_{m}L_{m} + W_{G}L_{G} + \sum_{i}PK_{i}R \cdot K_{i} \right]$
(22) + $\sum_{k} (X_{k} (P_{k} - \sum_{j}a_{jk}PC_{j}) - PC_{16}F_{k} - \delta_{k}K_{k}) \right]$
+ $\sum_{s}TF_{s}PC_{16}F_{s}$

where j=1-20; m=1,6,8-20; i=12-20 k=2-5,7; s=1-11. The revenue is divided between exogenous nominal government consumption (C_G) and the residual, endogenous government savings (S_G);

(23)
$$GR = C_G + S_G$$
.

The exogenous government consumption consists of purchases of labour (W_GL_G) and material inputs from sector j (M_{Gi}) ;

$$(24) gC_G = W_G L_G,$$

(25) $PC_{j}M_{Gj} = a_{Gj}(1 - g)C_{G}$,

where g is the cost share of labour in government consumption and a_{Gj} the share of total government demand for intermediates directed at sector j.

3.5 Investments

Total nominal net investments (J), are determined by the requirement that savings equal net investments;

(26)
$$J = (1 - c) Y + S_G + Z \cdot ER - \Sigma_j CS_j$$

where Z is exogenous transfers from abroad, which equals the balance of trade deficit. Government savings may in this framework be interpreted as an investment specific, lump sum transfer from the public to the private sector. CS_i is change in stocks.

A fixed part (m_i) of total net investments is allocated to each agricultural sector that uses capital;

(27) $m_i J = (DK_i - \delta_i K_{i,t}) PK_i$,

where i = 2-5,7, DK_i is gross investments in real terms and $\delta_i K_{i,t}$ is this years depreciation. The right hand side of (27) is thus net investments in sector *i*.

The stock of capital at the end of the year, $(K_{i,t+1})$ in the agricultural sectors will equal the stock at the beginning of the year $(K_{i,t})$, less depreciation, plus net investments;

(28)
$$K_{i,t+1} = DK_i + (1 - \delta_i) K_{i,t}$$
.

2 The LES (see for instance Deaton and Muellbauer (1987)) is derived from the assumption that households maximize utility, given a Stone-Geary specification;

(I) $U(C_{1,\ldots,}C_j) = \sum_j \kappa_j \ln(C_j - \gamma_j)$

and a budget constraint;

(II) $\Sigma_j P C_j C_j = E$

Maximising (I) subject to (II) gives the LES.

Demand for real capital in the non-agricultural sectors is determined by profit maximisation and is given by (10). Gross investments in real terms is thus the required stock of capital at the end of the year less the stock at the beginning of the year, plus replacement demand due to depreciation;

(29)
$$DK_j = K_{j,t+1} - (1 - \delta_j) K_{j,t}$$
,

where j = 12-20. In this framework, the rate of return to capital will adjust to secure equilibrium of savings and non-agricultural net investments, given by

(30)
$$J (1 - \Sigma_i m_i) = \Sigma_j (DK_j - \delta K_{j,t}) PK_j$$
.

where i = 2-5,7 and j = 12-20.

3.6 Equilibrium of domestic demand and supply

Finally, for each composite commodity, supply has to equal total demand, which will also secure that the balance of trade deficit equals the exogenous foreign transfers. For commodity 16-Manufacturing, which is defined as fertilisers when used in the agricultural sectors, and which is used as investments, consumption and intermediates other than fertilisers as well, the equilibrium condition is

(31)
$$\frac{XC_{16} = \Sigma_i a_{16i} X_i + \Sigma_k F_k + M_{G16}}{+ C_{16} + \Sigma_i b_{16i} DK_i + CS_{16}},$$

where *i*=12-20, *j*=2-5,7,12-20 and *k*=1-11.

For commodity 17-Constructions, which is used for investments, intermediates and consumption, equilibrium is given by

(32)
$$XC_{17} = \sum_i a_{17i}X_i + M_{G17} + C_{17} + \sum_i b_{17i}DK_i + CS_{17}$$

where
$$i = 1-20$$
, $j = 2-5, 7, 12-20$.

For the other commodities, that are not used as either investment goods or fertilisers, the equilibrium condition is

$$(33) XC_i = \sum_j a_{ij}X_j + M_{Gi} + C_i + CS_i ,$$

where i = 1-15, 18-20, j = 1-20.

Within this modelling framework, the long term growth potential of the economy will largely be determined by the growth in the capital stock determined by savings, exogenous technological progress, exogenous wage rates and the magnitude of land degradation processes (which is exogenous in this model, but largely determined by the price of fertilisers in the complete model).

The model includes 340 independent equations to determine the 340 endogenous variables below:

Aj	Export	(20)
Ćj	Private consumption	(20)
DK _i	Demand for real investments,	
,	j=2-5,7,12-20	(14)
GR	Government revenue	(1)
Ε	Total private expenditure	(1)
Fj	Use of fertilisers, $j = 1-11$	(11)
	Imports	(20)
I _j J	Total nominal investments	(1)
$K_{i,t+}$	1 Demand for real capital, $j=2-5,7,12-20$	(14)
	Government demand for labour	(1)
Lj	Demand for labour	(20)
М _і	Demand for intermediate inputs	(20)
М _{Gi}	Government demand for intermediate	
-,	inputs	(20)
Pj	Composite gross production price	(20)
Ρ́Α _j	Producer's export price	(20)
ΡĆ _j	Composite price of domestic and	
,	imported commodities	(20)
PDj	Domestic market price	(20)
PIj	Import price	(20)
PŔj	Price of real capital, j=2-5,7,12-20	(14)
R	Rate of return to real capital	(1)
SG	Government savings	(1)
	Gross production	(20)
ŃС _і	Composite good	(20)
ΧĎj		
5	domestic market	(20)
Y	Private disposable income	(1)
		=340

Exogenous

- B_i Factor neutral technological change
- \vec{C}_{G} Nominal government consumption
- CS_i Change in stocks
- ER Exchange rate
- *H_j* Shift variable in the export transformation function
- $K_{j,t}$ Stock of capital, beginning of the year, j=2-5,7,12-20
- PW_i World market price
- Q_j Shift variable in the import substitution function
- S_j Land degradation variable
- **Z** Foreign transfers
- TA_j Export tax rate
- TF_j Fertiliser tax rate, j=1-11
- TI_i Import tax rate

- Sales tax rate TS_i
- ΤÝ Income tax rate
- Wi Wage rate
- W_G Wage rate public sector

Parameters

- Government intermediate consumption a_{Gi} coefficient
- Input-output coefficient aii
- Investment by origin-investment by destination b_{ii} coefficient, i=16,17, j=2-5,7,12-20
- Marginal propensity to consume С
- Cost share of labour in government g consumption
- **Export share** hi
- Agricultural sector j's share of m_i investments, j=2-5,7
- Import share **q**j
- Cost share of labour αj
- Cost share of real capital, j=2-5,7 βj
- Budget shares, non-subsistence private ĸj consumption
- Subsistence quantities, private consumption
- γj δj Depreciation rate of real capital, j=2-5,7,12-20
- τj Constant elasticity of substitution parameter
- Elasticity of import substitution εj
- Constant elasticity of transformation parameter ρj
- Elasticity of export transformation Ω_j

Appendix 1 lists the model equations, variables and parameters. The model calibrated to produce the Social Accounting Matrix outlined in the next chapter, with all prices equal to unity. Base year values for the exogenous variables and the default values for the parameters are also listed in Appendix 1" As a compromise between our intentions of capturing the relevant structure of the economy as it appears after recent economic reforms and the available data, we choose 1990 as the model base year. In doing so, we will be able to utilize data for the agricultural sectors that are as recent as possible, while at the same time accepting that the treatment of the other sectors of the economy must be based on somewhat outdated assumptions. As previously noted, the agricultural sector is by far the largest sector in Tanzania and accounts for roughly 60 percent of Gross Domestic Product. For our purpose of incorporating land degradation into a general equilibrium framework, it is important to capture the latest developments in the agricultural sectors.

³ The model will be programmed in GAMS. For this purpose, some simplifications in the above model structure and alterations in the forthcoming base year values may be required.

4. The 1990-Social Accounting Matrix for Tanzania

In this chapter, we provide a rough outline of the data background, the assumptions and the shortcuts we have used in order to arrive at our 1990-Social Accounting Matrix (SAM) for Tanzania. The SAM that will serve as the core of the model discussed in the previous chapter is basically a disaggregation of total gross production (output) in the economy; a disaggregation into gross production of different sectors, and an overview of the use of gross production from each sector (final deliveries).

In Tanzania, like in most other developing countries, a significant part of output is devoted to nonmarketed, rural consumption. Furthermore, extensive interventions by the government during the 70's and 80's gave rise to market failures and supply shortfalls, and the development of a parallel, informal economy. Informal markets include agricultural and small scale production, transport and distribution activities, as well as illegal operations bypassing trading, finance and other exchange restrictions. The World Bank (1991) estimates the informal economy to be around 30 percent of formal GDP at factor costs. Agrawal et al. (1993) suggests that of exports, only half of actual export volumes are recorded. Recent economic reforms has decreased the importance of the informal economy, although it may still be substantial. We do however restrict our efforts to develop a SAM to the formal part of the Tanzanian economy, and base our SAM on official Tanzanian statistics, which we believe has not been adjusted to take account for the informal economy.

Our main sources of information are statistics from the Bureau of Statistics (BS) and the Planning Commission in Tanzania. The National Accounts (BS, 1993a), the Foreign Trade Statistics (BS, 1993b), the Survey of Industries (BS, 1988) and the 1976 input-output table (Komba and Wagao, 1986) are the most important documents for our use. Moreover, for the agricultural sectors we have production figures for years until 1993 and information about input use for a period ending in 1990/91. The National Accounts are available also for more recent years than 1990, while the most recent industrial survey, which provides us with information about the structure of the industrial sectors, is from 1988. When it comes to information about intermediate deliveries between sectors of the economy, our only source is the input-coefficients from the 1976 input-output table.

There are several problems in constructing a SAM suitable for our model. One is that we do not know total gross production of the economy. Gross production figures are available only from production statistics for the agricultural sectors. Second, our level of aggregation differ in most cases from the ones in the official Tanzanian statistics. This is hardly a problem when the information available is more detailed than what is required by the model. In our case however, this is rarely the case, as the official statistics often operate with very large aggregates (the 1976 input-output table not included). Our construction of the SAM has accordingly been a stepwise procedure, based on several rough assumptions. In the following outline of our gradual steps towards filling out the SAM, we start with the supply side of the economy.

4.1 Domestic supply

4.1.1 Gross Domestic Product at factor cost by sector

The National Accounts distributes Gross Domestic Product at factor costs³ at a sectoral level. Gross Domestic Product (GDP) is divided between 9 sectors, while our model has 20. Sector 9 in the National Accounts, Public administration and services, is not treated as a production sector at all in over model,

⁴ Gross Domestic Product at factor costs is equal to gross production, less taxes, less the cost of material inputs. In our model, sectoral GDP at factor costs corresponds to the term term $P_jX_j - \sum_i a_{ij}PC_iX_j - (1 + TF_j)F_jPC_{16}$ for the agricultural sectors and $P_jX_j - \sum_i a_{ij}PC_iX_j$ for the non-agricultural sectors. GDP at factor costs is often referred to as value added. The term GDP at market prices equals GDP at factors costs plus indirect taxes.

																															an Shilling								
																									-														
																										-													

National Account sector	Factor cost GDP. Mill. Tsh.	Corresponding model sector
1. Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing		
and Hunting	233 804	1-13
2. Mining and Quarrying	4 815	16
3. Manufacturing	18 301	14, 15, 16
4. Electricity and Water	7 438	18, 20
5. Construction	23 053	17
6. Wholesale and Retail trade,		
Hotels and Restaurants	55 815	20
7. Finance, Insurance, Real estate and	l	
Business services	24 124	20
8. Transport and Communication	36 248	19
9. Public administration and services	32 456	
Imputed bank service charges	-25 117	
Total	410 930	

essentially we treat this as a consumption sector only, to which we vill return later. As can be seen from Tabel 1, only sectors 17-Constructions, 19-Transport and Communication and 20-Other private services correspond directly with the sectoral division in the National Accounts. For the rest of the sectors we have to use some additional information in order to split GDP into 20 sectors.

The primary sectors 1-13:

The thirteen primary sectors in our model are aggregated into sector 1 of the National Accounts. In table 10.1 of the National Accounts the primary sector is however divided so that we are able to find GDP in our model sector 13-Forestry, Fishing and Hunting. Since the National Accounts does not disaggregate agriculture and livestock, we are unable to find GDP in the agricultural sectors 1-11 and 12-Livestock at this stage.

Industries:

In order to divide the National Accounts (NA) sectors 2 and 3 into the three industrial sectors of our model, we have made use of The Survey of Industrial Production 1988 (BS, 1988). We assume that the relative GDP-shares are the same in 1988 and 1990. By using Table 4 of the industrial survey we find that sector 14-Food and Beverages and sector 15-Textiles accounts for 30 percent and 16 percent, respectively, of GDP in "manufacturing". The remaining 54 percent of "manufacturing"- GDP, together with the industrial survey figure for GDP in the mining sector, is allocated to the model sector 16-Manufacturing. It should be noted that the industrial survey states all numbers at market prices while the GDP figures for the industrial sectors in the National Accounts are at factor prices. Our estimation method implies that we assume that each sector's share of GDP in the industries is the same whether measured at market prices or at factor cost. In other words, we assume that indirect taxes accounts for the same share of factor cost-GDP in each of the industrial sectors.

The total GDP figure for industries in the industrial survey is only 74 percent of the corresponding figure in the NA for 1988. This is probably due to the fact that the industrial survey only counts enterprises with more than 10 persons employed. The assumptions we have used to derive the 1990 figures for the three industrial sectors imply that we also assume that the relative under-counting of industries is the same for all industrial sectors. The NA estimates of GDP in the industrial sectors are based on the industrial surveys with adjustments for establishments with less than 10 persons employed, which again is based on the 1976 input-output studies and a survey of small scale enterprises in These adjustments are, however, not neces-1978.[~] sarily the same in all parts of industry.

Sector 18-Electricity

Water and electricity in sector 4 of the National Accounts is allocated to different sectors in our model. We separate electricity into sector 18, while water is allocated to sector 20-Other private services. From the industrial survey we find that GDP in electricity is 2 956 mill. Tanzanian Shilling (Tsh.) (market prices, 1988). In the National Accounts, water and electricity contributed 4 628 mill. Tsh. to GDP at factor cost in 1988. We first assume no indirect taxes on electricity and water, which implies that GDP at factor costs equals GDP at market prices. Second, we assume there is no under-counting of

	Factor cost GDP
1-12. Agriculture and Livestock	218 671
13. Forestry, Fishing and Hunting	15 133
14. Food and Beverages	5 490
15. Textiles	2 928
16. Manufacturing	14 698
17. Constructions	23 053
18. Electricity	4 760
19. Transport and Communication	36 242
20. Other private services	82 616
Total	403 592

Table 2. Model sector GDP at factor cost. Mill. Tsh.

5 Tanzania Economic Trends: A Quarterly Review of the Economy, vol.4, no.1, 1991,p.79 (Economic Research Bureau, 1991). A major drawback with the NA in Tanzania is that many estimates are based on the (outdated) 1976 input-output table which is the latest input-output study of the Tanzanian economy.

the electricity sector (this is not unreasonable because all electricity is provided by public enterprises and thus the figures are probably based on the accounts of these public utilities). We may now use the industrial survey figure for GDP in electricity production to calculate this sector's share of the water and electricity aggregate in the NA, which was 64 percent in 1988. The same ratio between water and electricity is assumed for 1990 and we get GDP in electricity of 4 760 mill. Tsh. and in water supply of 2 678 mill. Tsh.

To conclude, we have GDP at factor cost by model sector as displayed in Table 2. The discrepancy of our total GDP at factor cost figure and the National Accounts total, comprises of GDP in Public administration and services and Imputed bank service charges.

4.1.2 Gross Domestic Product at market prices by sector

In order to arrive at market price GDP we have to add indirect taxes to the factor cost figures. Our first task is then to calculate indirect taxes for each sector. Table 5 in the National Accounts states that total indirect taxes were 94 280 mill. Tsh. in 1990. There is no indication in the National Accounts of how indirect taxes are distributed among sectors, or of what the sources of indirect tax revenue are. From The Economic Survey 1991 (Planning Commission, 1992) Table 18: Trends in Government Finance, we find that for the fiscal year 90/91, tax revenue was 101 065 mill. Tsh. in current prices. With income taxes and other taxes (which we assume to be direct taxes of some kind) summing to 41 765 mill. Tsh., the remaining tax revenue of 59 300 mill. Tsh. is due to indirect taxes. This does not correspond very well with the NA's net figure for indirect taxes of 94 280 mill. Tsh. We stick to the NA's level of indirect taxes and assume that the allocation of the indirect taxes in the Economic Survey between customs duties (37 percent) and domestic sales taxes (63 percent) is representative for the sources of indirect tax revenue in the NA 1990. This implies that net indirect taxes of 94 280 mill.

8		Ľ.	ä	ŀ	1	ê	3	8	č	į,	H	2	e,	ŝ	ő	ř.	Ŷ,	ŝ	e	ĥ	8	8	i,	ş	8	è	٣	R	2	8	t	2	2	2	2	Z	ï	Ŷ	¢	Ţ	3	2	2	1	8	ñ	٣	i.	R	õ	ł.	

	GDP at factor cost	Sales tax	GDP at market price
14. Food and Beverages	5 490	14 106	19 596
15. Textiles	2 928	7 524	10 452
16. Manufacturing	14 698	37 766	52 464

Tsh. are comprised of 34 884 mill. Tsh. in customs duties and 59 396 mill. Tsh. in domestic sales taxes. To get the GDP at market prices, the sales taxes has to be allocated to the correct model commodities.

From our scant information about the structure of sales taxes, it seems that such taxes are mainly levied on commodity sales. Agricultural products seem largely to escape sales taxes in Tanzania. Sugar products are the most important exception, but as sugar accounts for a very small share of agricultural production we can ignore this indirect tax. Thus it seems reasonable to distribute the sales taxes to sectors 14-Food and Beverages, 15-Textiles and 16-Manufacturing⁶. Sales tax revenue is allocated between these sectors in proportion to their GDP at factor cost.

With our distribution of sales taxes, sectors 14-Food and Beverages, 15-Textiles, and 16-Manufacturing have market price GDP that differ from GDP at factor costs. GDP at factor costs, sales taxes and GDP at market prices are as displayed in Table 3. For the other sectors of our model we assume there is no difference between the two GDP values.

4.1.3 Gross production by model sector

For the agricultural sectors 1-11 we have production statistics which provide us with gross production for each sector. For the rest of the sectors we have to make assumptions about the share of gross production which is accounted for by GDP at market prices.

From the industrial survey; Table 4, we can calculate value added as share of gross output in each of our three industrial sectors and the electricity sector for 1988. We assume these shares are the same in 1990.

For the remaining sectors we have to use value added shares from the 1976 input-output table. Most of the remaining sectors in our model correspond to several sectors in the input-output table, each with different value added shares. When it comes to sector 12-Livestock, we still do not have a GDP figure for this sector. Based on the value added shares in the 1976 input-output table, we assume both for sector 12-Livestock and 13-Forestry, Fishing and Hunting that value added accounts for 90 percent of gross output.

From the National Accounts, Tables 3, 11 and 12, we are able to disaggregate sector 20-Other private

6 This assumption is based on a table listing sales tax by input-output sector for the period 1976-1985, in: Revised National Accounts of Tanzania: Results of the National Accounts Project, implemented on behalf of the Statistical Office of the European Communities, (Stäglin and Kumba, 1992).

		8	8	ŝ		ŝ		ŝ	8				ŝ			8	ŝ													Ì	ŝ				3	8						8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8		j												
		3		f	Ś		8	l	ľ	È	Ì	į	l		ĺ,	ę	1	ï	ľ	2	ŝ	ï	Ĭ	č	ŝ	Ï	ť	ē	Ĩ	ŝ	Ĩ	ï	Ľ	è	Ż	i	C	2	Î	ē	l	l	ŝ		Ì		ŝ	Š.	8	ŝ	ł	ĺ.	8		8								
				8			8				8					8								ŝ											8			8													8						8					ŝ	

	GDP as share of	Gross
<u>c</u>	pross production	production
1. Cotton		7 114
2. Coffee		5 873
3. Tea		1 232
4. Tobacco		995
5. Cashew		1 308
6. Cassava		9 396
7. Maize		26 895
8. Rice		9 1 3 9
9. Sorghum		10 579
11. Other crops and cereals		129 970
12. Livestock	0. 9	
13. Forestry, Fishing and Hunting	0.9	16 814
Food and Beverages	0.25	78 384
15. Textiles	0.17	66 817
16. Other Manufacturing, Mining)	
and Quarrying	0.23	228 104
17. Constructions	0.4	57 118
18. Electricity	0.62	7 677
19. Transport and Communication	on 0.75	48 323
20. Other private services	0.44	185 902

services into the sub-sectors found in the input-output table. We have not succeded in finding any indication regarding the composition of sector 19-Transport and Communication. It seems reasonable that transport is the larger part of the aggregate; we simply assume that transport accounts for 75 percent of GDP in that sector. By combining GDP of each sub-sector with their respective value added shares from the input-output table we arrive at gross output in sectors 17-Constructions, 19-Transport and Communication and 20-Other private services. Our gross production estimates are summarised in Table 4.

Total GDP less GDP in sector 12-Other crops and cereals in 1990 accounts for 56 percent of estimated total gross production in Table 4 below (where GDP in sector 12-Other crops and cereals is not yet found). Since we do not have a total gross output figure from other sources, it is difficult to know whether our estimate is reasonable or not. From a document of revised GDP figures we have gross output figures from 1976 to 1985.' If we compare the 1985 gross output figure with GDP that year, gross output is about 40 percent larger than GDP. This indicates that we may have overestimated gross output. However, as our estimates are based on official statistics as well (with the exception of the GDP share in 13-Forestry, fishing and hunting), we will not attempt to adjust our gross production figures.

4.1.4 Imports

Data on imports are found in the Foreign Trade Statistics, 1990 (FTS) (BS, 1993b). The FTS commodity import figure of 199 260 mill. Tsh. is much lower than the National Account's figure for total imports of 280 840 mill. Tsh. The National Account only splits imports into merchandise (262 544 mill. Tsh.) and other (18 296 mill. Tsh.). We assume that "other" is imports of services and allocate this to sector 20-Other private services. There is still a large discrepancy between the FTS total commodity import-figure and total merchandise imports in the National Accounts. We adjust the commodity import figures from the FTS proportionally upwards so that the sum of total imports equals the figure in the National Accounts. In addition, we disregard the 10 mill. Tsh imports of maize and add this to imports of 11-Other crops and cereals. By combining information from FTS: Table 20 (Direct imports by commodity), and Table 26 (Importation of selected commodities), we have arrived at the distribution of imports exhibited in Table 5 (2-numbered codes refer to FTS Table 20 and other codes refer to FTS Table 26).

Table 5, Imports. Mill. Tsh. Imports Imports Commodity FTS codes NA FTS 31 41 12 Tobacco 10 7. Maize 044 551 042 418 8. Rice 11. Other (04-044-042) +05+06+07+(08crops 081.4)+(09-099.061-099.092 5 728 -112.309)+22 4 3 37 00+01+02+21 851 1 121 12. Livestock 13. Forestry, 282 372 fishing, hunting 03+24 14. Food and 11+29+41+42+43+ 081.4+099.061+ beverages 3 756 099.092+112.309 2 851 5 420 7 141 26+65+84 15. Textiles The rest of 16. Other 243 834 Table 20 185 060 industries and mining 20. Other private 18 296 services 280 840 199 260 Total

⁷ See footnote 5.

Table 6. Ex	port. Mill. Tsh.			
Commodity	FTS codes	Export FTS	•	Export in domestic prices
1. Cotton	81.30+263.10	14 824	13 886	1 250
2. Coffee	Table 12	15 093	14 121	5 783
3. Tea	Table 12	7 326	6 854	341
4. Tobacco	Table 12	2 511	2 349	664
5. Cashew	Table 12	770	720	336
11. Other crops	04+(05-cashew)+ (06-61.50)+(07-coffee -tea)+(08-81.30)+ 09+22+(26-263.10)	19 960	18 675	18 675
12. Livestock	00+01+02+21	914	855	855
13. Forestry, fishing, hunting	03+24+291.13+ 292.20+292.40+ 292.92	3 651	3 416	3 416
14. Food and beverages 29	61.50+11+(121-121.0) +(29-291.13-292.20- 2.40-292.92)+41+42+43	1 247	1 168	1 168
15. Textiles	65+84	4 745	4 439	4 439
16. Other industries and mining	The rest of Table 4	10 103	9 452	9 452
19. Transport ar communication	nd		14 000	14 000
20. Other privat services	e		13 522	13 522
Total		81 162	103 457	73 891
"Export taxes"				29 566
Total				103 457

4.1.5 Exports

Data on commodity exports are found in the FTS, Table 4 (Domestic exports by commodity), Table 12 (Selected major exports by area of destination) and Table 17 (Exports of selected commodities: value). Total exports of 81 162 mill. Tsh. are distributed to their respective sectors in more or less the same way as imports.

As with imports, we have a discrepancy between the export figures in the FTS and the NA, but the figures are indeed more similar. According to the NA, the total exports of goods and services from Tanzania were 103 457 mill. Tsh., this is further divided in merchandise exports (75 935 mill. Tsh.) and other (27 522 mill. Tsh.). The "other" category is assumed to be services. Commodity exports as distributed according to the FTS are adjusted proportionally downwards until the sum equals the corresponding sum in the NA (75 935 mill. Tsh.). These adjustments are shown in the second last column of Table 6. With regard to exports of services, this accounts for 27 percent of exports, which is a rather high share for a developing country. According to Tanzanian Economic Trends, vol.4, no.1, 1991 (Economic Research Bureau, 1991); the provision of commodity transit services to neighbouring landlocked countries is the second largest foreign exchange earner after coffee. Since coffee earns 14 121 mill. Tsh. in foreign exchange, while cotton as the second largest export commodity earns 13 886 mill. Tsh., we allocate 14 000 mill. Tsh. of the NA figure for "other", which we assumed to be export of services, to sector 19-Transport and Communication. The remaining 13 522 mill. Tsh. is then of commodity 20-Other private services.

The FTS export figures for the four main export crops: cotton, coffee, tea and tobacco, are far larger than the values of gross output in these sectors. This is probably caused by a difference between world prices and domestic producer prices. For the model, we need exports and gross output measured in the same prices.

For the five major cash crops (cotton, coffee, tea, tobacco and cashew) we have data for the volume of exports (FTS, Table 10) and the unit values of exports (FTS, Table 13). Instead of using the "world prices" of exports from FTS, Table 13, we have calculated the shares of the production volumes that are exported. These export shares multiplied by gross output at market prices give us the value of the five major agricultural exports in domestic producer prices. By using this procedure we get much lower export figures and total exports sum to 73 891 mill. Tsh. instead of the NA figure of 103 457 mill. Tsh. Our low export figure will, cet. par., enlargen total domestic supply, compared to the NA data. The adjusted export figures used in the SAM are listed in the last column of Table 6.

4.1.6 Customs duties

When deriving GDP at market prices, we made some assumption about the distribution of indirect taxes between sales taxes and customs duties, based on the Economic Survey (Planning Commission, 1992). We still have to distribute the customs duties revenue of 34 884 mill. Tsh. between importand export taxes, and between goods.

Our adjustments of FTS export figures for the major export crops, which we did in order to arrive at exports measured in domestic market prices, resul-

Table 7. Import taxes	Mill. Tsh.			Table 8. Export taxe	s. Mill. Tsh.		
	Imports at domestic prices	Imports at world prices	Import tax revenue		Export at domestic prices	Export at world prices	Export tax revenue
11. Other crops and cereal		5 162	566	1. Cotton	1 250	2 344 10 842	1 094 5 059
14. Food and Beverages 15. Textiles	3 756 7 141	3 385 6 435	371 706	2. Coffee 3. Tea	5 783 341	639	298
16. Manufacturing	243 834	219 728	24 106	4. Tobacco	664	1 245	581
20. Other private services	18 296	16 487	1 809	5. Cashew	336	630	294
Sum import tax revenue			27 558	Sum export tax revenue			7 326

ted in a difference of 29 566 mill. Tsh., between our estimated total exports and total exports according to the NA. Initially we tried to treat this as a kind of tax revenue for the public sector. It is well known that the government through its producer pricing policies have taxed the agricultural sector through the marketing boards, in the form of low producer prices relative to export prices. According to the World Bank's economic report on Tanzania, this taxation have at times been as high as 60 percent". Our data for 1990 however, suggests rather extreme tax rates. From Table 6, we see that the export tax for cotton, which we take to be the difference between the figures in the last two columns, amounts to close to one thousand percent. The implicit tax rates on the other crops are in the same range. One reason for the extreme tax rates we get compared to the World Bank estimate is that we have made no adjustments for transportation costs.

Our assumption so far, regarding export taxes (which sum to 29 566 mill. Tsh.), together with our estimate of total customs duties (34 884 mill Tsh.), leave total import taxes to be determined residually (5 318 mill. Tsh.). As imports is 280 840 mill. Tsh., the import tax rate would have to be less than two percent on average. Figures from the Economic Survey however suggests that the average customs level in Tanzania is about 30 percent. To conclude, our low import taxes and high export taxes suggests either errors in our assumptions or large collection errors; most likely both. Instead, we choose to distribute the revenue from customs duties of 34 884 mill. Tsh. proportionally between total imports and our own estimate of total export, at domestic market prices. This leaves 27 558 mill. Tsh. (79 percent) to be allocated between the imported goods and the remaining 7 326 mill. Tsh. (21 percent) to be allocated between the exported goods. The average customs level is then approximately 10 percent.

Table 5 reveals five main imported commodities; Commodity 11-Other crops, the three industrial commodities; 14-Food and Beverages, 15-Textiles and 16-Manufacturing, and 20- Other private services. We assume customs duties are levied only on these imports. By assuming that import taxes and collection shortfalls are the same for these five commodities, we arrive at imports valued at domestic market prices and at world market prices shown in Table 7. As not all imports are assumed to be subject to taxes, the tax level is somewhat higher than the average customs level of 10 percent; the import tax level on the five commodities is 11 percent.

Our new estimate of export taxes is shown in Table 8. We have assumed tax rates and errors to be the same for the five main export crops where we made adjustments for differences between export prices and domestic producer prices. Accordingly we assume that this difference is neglectable for other sectors; that is, we assume no export taxes. The export tax rate on the five commodities is 87 percent, which is still high, but far more reasonable than our previous estimate.

4.2 Intermediate deliveries

Our assumptions regarding how much GDP accounts for of gross production in the non-agricultural sectors 12-20, gives us the amount of input use we should expect in each sector. We take these estimated gross output and input use figures to be "correct" for the remaining efforts to arrive at a complete SAM.

Our only source of information about cross-sectoral links in the economy is the input-output table from 1976 which lists *domestic* input-output coefficients for 72 sectors; domestic deliveries from sector i per unit output from sector j. The table also lists import-coefficients for each sector; inputs of imports (aggregate) per unit output from sector j.

⁸ Tanzania Economic Report: Towards Sustainable Development in the 1990s.Vol 1, p.61. (World Bank, 1991).

First, with the help of the industrial survey and the disaggregation in the National Accounts, Tables 10, 11 and 12, we are able to estimate 1976-gross output in most of the 72 sectors in the input-output table. This is needed in order to make aggregates of the 72 sectors that fits with the sectors of our model, and by that suitable aggregates of the inputoutput coefficients. We apply our aggregated coefficients and arrive at an estimates of the use of domestically produced inputs in each of the 20 model sectors. However, the structure of our model requires input coefficients measuring inputs of each composite good per unit gross production. We apply the aggregate import coefficients from the 1976 inputoutput table, and arrive at an estimate for the use of imported inputs in each of the 20 sectors. We use our estimated domestic input figures as weights and distribute the figure for imported inputs proportionally among the domestic inputs.

For the agricultural sectors we have additional information about production technology and input use from the annual reviews of the different crops conducted by the Marketing Development Bureau. These studies indicate the use of fertilisers, agrochemicals, bags, transport, tools, seeds and other; on a per hectare basis for the main crops in the 1990/91 season. It should be noted that these input figures are assessed by the Marketing Development Bureau for the purpose of calculating for instance potential agricultural incomes and yields. The figures are thus probably much higher than the "true" values; when these input figures are multiplied by their appropriate production areas we get a total input figure of 34 367 mill. Tsh. for sector 1-11, while the input use we get by using the 1976 input-output table is only 9 924 mill. Tsh. In the National Accounts it is assumed that intermediate consumption in the agricultural sectors is 10 percent of gross output. This assumption is based on the 1976 inputoutput table, but due to changing technology and crop mix it may require revision. The assumption of 90 percent value added in all the agricultural sectors would give a total input figure of 20 669 mill. Tsh. in sectors 1-11; also much larger than the figure we arrive at by using the input-output coefficients from 1976. Thus, by applying three alternative ways of estimating input use in the agricultural sectors we turn out with three alternative figures.

As our estimates of sectoral, agricultural gross production are based on the Marketing Development Bureau-studies, we choose to use the input figures from the same sources, with a few adjustments; we have adjusted downwards the marketing board input figures where these seem unreasonably high. For 1-Cotton, 2-Coffee, 4-Tobacco, 5-Cashew and 7-Maize, the marketing board input use figures were larger than gross output of these crops. Our adjustments of inputs are such that we end up with a positive value added in these sectors. We made the following adjustments of the Marketing Development Bureau-figures:

First, we have ignored the figures for tools as input since they account for less than 3 percent of the total estimated input use.

Second, the figure for input of bags are adjusted downwards to become roughly equal to the availability of bags in the economy, as it appears in the FTS commodity import table and production figures from the industrial survey. We classify bags as part of commodity 15-Textiles. Subtracting the exports of sisal ropes and adding the imports of jute bags gives a maximum availability of bags of about 3 000 mill. Tsh., yet the use of bags in agriculture was according to the marketing board estimates 7 839 mill. Tsh. We have adjusted the bag input fi-

Table 9. Input use, agriculture. Mill. Tsh.									
	Fertil.	Transp.	Bags	Seeds	Total	Gross production	GDP		
1. Cotton	3 557	632	420	687	5 296	7 114	1 818		
2. Coffee	2 918	175	32	90	3 214	5 873	2 659		
3. Tea	11	7		185	203	1 232	1 029		
4. Tobacco	497	90	90	140	817	995	178		
5. Cashew	690	20	390		1 100	1 380	280		
6. Cassava			120		120	9 396	9 2 7 6		
7. Maize	1 794	2 271	1 170	2 600	7 835	26 895	19 060		
8. Rice		166	450	612	1 228	9 2 3 9	7 911		
9. Sorghum		54	180	334	568	4 1 1 8	3 550		
10. Beans	120	158	90	1 425	1 793	10 579	8 786		
11. Other	1 000	1 000	90	2 059	4 149	129 970	125 821		
Total	10 587	4 573	3 032	8 132	26 324	206 691	180 367		

9 Tanzania Economic Trends: A Quarterly Review of the Economy, vol.4, no.1, p.76 (Economic Research Bureau, 1991).

gures downwards so that they sum to 3 000 mill. Tsh.

Our third adjustment is to lower the figure for input of seeds (intra sectoral input) to 7-Maize from 8 007 mill. Tsh. to 2 600 mill. Tsh. For most of the other crops, roughly 10 percent of gross production seems to go as input to own sector, the same assumption for maize gives seed inputs of 2 600 mill. Tsh.

Fourth, the transport input of more than 50 percent of output in 4-Tobacco is set more in line with transport use in other sectors; 10 percent of gross production.

Fifth, 1-Cotton, 4-Tobacco and 5-Cashew have estimated fertiliser and agro-chemical inputs of 74, 71 and 80 percent of their gross output respectively. These input figures seem rather high when compared to the use of fertilisers and agro-chemicals in the fertiliser-intensive coffee production. We assume that use of fertilizers and agro-chemicals in the production of tobacco, cotton and cashew are roughly the same as for coffee and set these inputs to 50 percent of gross output in each of the three sectors.

In addition to the adjustments made of the Marketing Development Bureau-figures, we have made use of the input figures arrived at by using the 1976 input-output coefficients in the sectors where marketing board surveys are missing. We end up with input use in the agricultural sectors as displayed in table 9¹⁰.

The remaining task is to make sure that for each non-agricultural sector, the use of inputs estimated on the basis of the 1976 input-output table, must equal our estimate of total input use which follows from the difference between estimated gross output and GDP at market prices. It comes as no surprise that for many sectors there is a somewhat large discrepancy between the two values. We take the difference between gross production and gross product to be the "correct" estimate of total intermediate input in each sector, and leave the necessary adjustments of inter-sectoral deliveries until we have made our estimates of the components of final deliveries.

The estimated total input figures for each sector enables us to fill in the missing elements of the supply side of the SAM. Applying the agricultural input figures and the gross production estimates display-

	Production for the domestic market, mill. Tsh.	Sales tax revenue, mill. Tsh.	Sales tax rate, percent
14. Food and Beverages	77 216	14 106	18
15. Textiles	57 043	7 524	13
16. Manufacturing	218 652	37 766	17

ed in Table 4, paragraph 4.1.3, we get GDP in the agricultural sectors 1-11. Total value added for sectors 1-11 is 180 367 mill. Tsh. From Table 1 we have that GDP in the primary sectors 1-13 is 233 804 mill Tsh. As we by now have GDP in sectors 1- 11 and 13-Forestry, Fishing and Hunting we are able to calculate value added of sector 12-Livestock as a residual. We get GDP in sector 12-Livestock of 38 304 mill. Tsh. and with our assumption of 90 percent value added this gives us gross production in sector 12-Livestock of 42 560 mill. Tsh.

Our estimates so far, of GDP at factor costs and market prices, gross production, imports and exports in domestic prices are summarized in Table 1 in Appendix 2. Gross production (X_j) less exports (A_j) equals the term "Production for the domestic market" (XD_j) in the model. XD_j plus imports add to total supply of each of the composite goods (XC_j) in the model.

To finish our discussion of the supply side of the SAM, we are now able to calculate the sales tax rates (TS_j) which enters our model as an element of the domestic market price (PD_j) . The sales taxes were introduced in paragraph 4.1.2 where we calculated GDP at market prices. The gross production at market price values for the sectors 14-Food and Beverages, 15-Textiles and 16-Manufacturing (which we assumed where the only commodities subject to sales tax), less exports yield production for the domsetic market (XD_j) . Applying the corresponding tax revenues estimated in paragraph 4.1.2, we get the tax rates displayed in Table 10.

4.3 Final deliveries 4.3.1 Change in stocks

From the National Account, total change in stocks is 18 022 mill. Tsh. We make no attempt to allocate this figure to different sectors. We leave change in stocks to be determined as a residual so that the

¹⁰Note that the sectors 6,8 and 9 there are no inputs of fertilisers according to our sources. We do however want the option of applying fertilisers in all agricultural sectors, and have included this input in all agricultural production functions. The use of fertilisers in the model, in the sectors that does not in fact use any in the model base year, is set to be greater than zero but not large enough to disturb the elements in our forthcoming input-output table.

size of change in stock in each sector is set in order to make total use of each composite equal to total availability.

4.3.2 Government consumption

Government consumption is given in the NA as 52 637 mill. Tsh. GDP in the NA sector "Public Administration and other Services" is 35 134 mill. Tsh. We assume that the difference is consumption of intermediates. Inputs of each model composite is found from the coefficients in the 1976 input-output table, assuming gross production in the public sector to be 52 637 mill. Tsh., and distributing imported inputs proportionally to domestically produced inputs.

4.3.3 Investment

We classify two composites only as investment goods; 16-Manufacturing and 17-Constructions. Table 13 of the National Accounts divides total investment of 217 404 mill. Tsh. by type of capital good. Initially, we assumed that all "Buildings" and "Other works" (Land improvements, Roads and Bridges, and Water supply) consisted of the constructioncommodity. According to this procedure however, the deliveries for investment purposes exceeded the domestic supply of this good. Instead we take our estimates of demand for constructions as intermediates and government consumption for given, calculate private consumption by applying the budget share for "Rents" from the national Consumer Price Index¹¹, and let the rest of domestic supply of the construction-commodity be deliveries for investment purposes in the production sectors. Investment demand for the commodity 16-Manufacturing follows as the residual of the NA value for total investments.

4.3.4 Private consumption

The figure of total private consumption, 394 530 mill. Tsh., is found in the NA; Table 5. If we leave out the change in stocks, our estimates of intermediate input demand, investments and government consumption, private consumption of each composite should in principal be given as the residual of the total supply. Our aggregate residual private consumption is however greater than the NA figure. Furthermore, the allocation between goods is quite different from the one given by the weights of the various consumption items in the national Consumer Price Index (CPI), which we will use as a guide in our further attempts to derive at private consumption figures. The CPI weights are shown in Table 11.

The last column of the table shows the budget shares first applied to derive the consumption figures in the SAM. The figures in parenthesis refers to "re-

Table 11. CPI weights and SAM-budget shares. Percent

Consumption category	CPI weights	Corresponding model goods	Budget shares in the SAM
Food	64.2	1-14	
Drinks and Tobacco	2.5	1-14	64.3
Rents	4.9	17	4.9
Fuel, Light and Water	7.6	18 16	0.2 (7.4)
Clothing, Footwear	9.9	15 16	8.0 (1.9)
Furniture, Utensils	1.4	16	(1.4)
Household Operations	3.4	16	(3.4)
Personal care and Health	1.3	20	
Recreation, Entertainment	0.7	20	2.0
Transport	4.1	19	2.5
Total	100		
Model commodity		18.0	
Total			100

sidual" budget shares which added up should give our budget share for commodity 16-Manufacturing.

Private consumption of commodities 1-13 is calculated residually. Given our earlier estimates of intermediate and final deliveries from these sectors, consumption of each good is the amount which makes the corresponding lines in the SAM sum to sectoral gross production. Then consumption of commodity 14-Food and Beverages is calculated so that the budget share of commodities 1-14 added up is close to the CPI weight for Food, Drinks and Tobacco. The budget share of commodities 1-14 in the SAM is now 64.3 while the weight in the CPI is 66.7.

Somewhat arbitrary, we assume that of the CPI weight of 9.9 percent for Clothing and Footwear, 8 percent is commodity 15-Textiles and the remaining 1.9 percent enters commodity 16-Manufacturing. Consumption of commodity 17-Constructions was already calculated by applying the CPI weigh of 4.9. Private consumption of 18-Electricity is calculated residually, giving a budget share of 0.2,

11Economic Bulletin, Vol. 21, no 1, p.9 (Bank of Tanzania, 1991).

which is low compared to the CPI weight of Fuel, Light and Water of 7.6. Applying the CPI weight for transport to calculate consumption of commodity 19-Transport and Communication yield consumption greater than domestic supply. We calculate consumption of this good residually so that total domestic supply equals total demand. For commodity 20-Other private services, consumption is calculated by applying the CPI weights of Personal care and Health, Recreation and Entertainment (2.0). Finally, our estimates so far leaves consumption of commodity 16-Manufacturing to be determined as residual private consumption. This gives a budget share of 18, which is somewhat too high if one adds the so far unused CPI weights of Furniture and Utensils (1.4), Households operations (3.4) Footwear (assumed to be 1.9) and the remaining Fuel light and water weight (7.6 -0.2), which sum to 14.1. The reason why our budget share for commodity 16-Manufacturing is high is our low budget shares of 18-Electricity and 19-Transport and Communication.

4.3.5 Status of the SAM

The status of the SAM is by now the following: For most sectors we have that total use equals total supply, as we for several sectors calculated private consumption residually to secure equality. Thus these lines will not be adjusted. Our problem setors/commodities are 14-Food and Beverages, 15-Textiles, 16-Manufacturing and 20-Other private services. In sector 14-Food and Beverages, total domestic availability is less than our estimate of total demand. In the sectors 15-Textiles, 16-Manufacturing and 20-Other private services the problem is that total availability is much larger than our estimates of use of each commodity.

First, we take our estimated final deliveries as given. Before we turn to adjusting the figures for intermediate inputs we have to check weather the use of material inputs in each non-agricultural sector, as calculated on the basis of the 1976 inputoutput table, corresponds to our estimate on the basis of GDP and gross production. For the agricultural sectors there is no discrepancy as GDP is calculated as gross production less material inputfigures, both based on the Marketing Development Bureau-data. For the remaining sectors our estimates of input use from the 1976 input-output table does not equal the input figures which follow from the difference between our estimated gross production and GDP at market prices.

For sectors 12-Livestock, 13-Forestry, Fishing and Hunting and 18-Electricity the differences between the two estimates are small and we adjust the input figures proportionally until the sum to the difference between gross production and GDP at market prices. In sectors 14-Food and Beverages, 15-Textiles,

16-Manufacturing, 17-Constructions, 19-Transport and Communication and 20-Other private services, the input estimates from the 1976-input coefficients are lower than the input use figures which follow from the difference between our estimated gross production and GDP at market prices. Thus, in order to make columns sum up right we have to increase input use. The only intermediate deliveries we can increase without disturbing the balance of the lines of the SAM, are inputs from sectors 15-Textiles, 16-Manufacturing and 20-Other private services, as these are the only commodities where domestic supply exceeds domestic demand. Accordingly, we increase inputs of these goods proportionally to the previous input estimates, until we end up with total input use in all sectors equal to the difference between our estimated gross production and GDP at market prices.

The resulting input-output table is displayed in Table 2 in Appendix 2. The input-output coefficients (a_{ij}) needed for the model follows directly by dividing each element by the corresponding gross production values (X_j) from Table 1. The input-output coefficients are displayed in Table 3 in Appendix 2. Note that the coefficient measuring inputs of commodity 16-Manufacturing in the agricultural sectors does not enter the model as such. We have defined this commodity as fertilisers, which is applied by the agricultural sectors on the basis of profit maximisation.

The SAM we end up with after adjusting intermediate inputs still reveal discrepancies between the use and availability of output for commodities 14-Food and Beverages, 15-Textiles, 16-Manufacturing and 20-Other private services. The estimated supply of 15-Textiles, 16-Manufacturing and 20-Other private services is larger than estimated demand. Supply of commodity 14-Food and Beverages is still unadjusted and thus to low. If we assume that some of the private consumption of food and beverages takes place at hotels and restaurants, private consumption of commodity 20-Other private services may be increased on the behalf of consumption of commodity 14-Food and Beverages. We allow the budget share of commodity 20-Other private services to double from 2.0 to 4.0 to account for this, and adjusts consumption of commodity 14-Food and Beverages downwards correspondingly.

The remaining discrepancies of the commodities 14-Food and Beverages, 15-Textiles, 16-Manufacturing and 20-Other private services, enters the SAM as changes in stock. Relative to total domestic supply (XC_j), the change in stock of commodity 14-Food and Beverages is 21 percent, commodity 15-Textiles is 42 percent, 16-Manufacturing is 7 per cent and 20-Other private services is 4 per cent. The change in stock of 15-Textiles is thus quite high, while that of the other commodities are more acceptable. The large value for change in stocks of 15-Textiles may of course reflect serious errors in out estimation methods, but may on the other hand reflect actual change in stocks, due to the substantial uncertainties facing the producers during economic reforms. As the industrial surveys do not report data on changes in stocks and the NA only displays aggregate change in stocks, it is impossible to check the realism of our figures. Our aggregate change in stocks, of 40 492 mill Tsh. is however not too far from the NA figure of 18 022 mill Tsh., and corresponds to less than four percent of total domestic supply. One reason why our discrepancy between demand and supply is larger than in the NA is that while the components of total final demand (private and public consumption plus investments) corresponds to the NA values, the components of domestic supply are largely estimated. For instance is our figure for total exports adjusted downwards compared to the NA value. Cet. par., this increases domestic supply. On the other hand, we made no adjustments to account for bank service charges, which cet. par. decreases domestic demand.

The demand side of the SAM is displayed in Table 4 in Appendix 2. The table shows the use of each composite good for intermediate inputs (denoted $\sum_i a_{ij} X_i$ in the model), Private consumption (C_j), Government consumption ($a_{Gj}C_G$) and Gross investments (DK_j). The last column displays total domestic demand, which equals total domestic supply of each composite good.

4.4 Additional data

Some additional data are needed as input in the CGE model outlined in chapter 3, in order to determine the distribution of income, investments, the LES, foreign trade and government consumption. The data discussed below are included in order to give base year values to the model's exogenous variables and default values to the parameters.

4.4.1 Distribution of income

For each sector of production and for the public sector, value added at factor cost (GDP) has to be divided between wages, returns to capital and profits in the agricultural sectors in which the use of capital is fixed, and depreciation; in order to find the cost share parametes of the production function, the rate of depreciation of capital-parameter, and the stock of capital.

Table 5 of the National Accounts displays aggregate values of GDP at factor cost. Of the total GDP value of 410 930 mill. Tsh. (the discrepancy between this figure and our is GDP in the public sector and imputed bank service charges), 57 071 mill. Tsh. is wages, 339 506 mill. Tsh. is operating surplus (returns to capital) and 14 364 mill. Tsh. is depreciation. We

have not been able to find any estimates of the rate of depreciation or the rate of return to capital in Tanzania. Neither do we know the stock of real capital, either at a sectoral level or as an aggregate. The NA figures does however imply either an extremely high nominal rate of return to capital, or an extremely low depreciation rate; if the NA figures are correct, the nominal rate of return has to be almost 24 times as high as the rate of depreciation. A very high rate of inflation could explain a high nominal rate of return. However, according to the Tanzanian Economic Trends, Table 3 (Economic Research Bureau, 1993), the increase in the Retail Price Index from 1989 to 1990 was less than 20 percent. Furthermore, the rate of return is dependent on the interest rate; in a perfect market economy the two should be the same (when the interest rate is adjusted for expectations of devaluation). The interest rates in 1990 ranged between 9 and 31 percent (Table 8b, Tanzanian Economic Trends). If the rate of return was equal to an interest rate of 24 percent, the NA figures of depreciation and profits imply a rate of depreciation of only 1 percent. This is highly unlikely, and in contrast to the values in the industrial survey. According to the value added figures for the industries, the depreciation rate is almost three times as high as the rate of return. The discrepancy between the NA and industrial survey figures could be due to very high profits in the nonindustrial sectors, but the magnitude of the differences is too large for this to be a reasonable explanation. As our only sources of information on these matters are rather inconsistent, we simply assume the that the rate of returns to capital in 1990 was 25 percent, which is between the interest rate on long term savings of 26 percent and the interest rates on Treasury Bills of 23 percent (Tanzanian Economic Trends, Table 8b). Together with additional assumptions outlined below, this enables us to come up with figures for sectoral depreciation rates and real capital stocks, which we take to be at the beginning of the year.

The basis of information about the distribution of income in the agricultural sectors are the annual reviews of the different crops by the Marketing Developing Bureau. The use of real capital is very low in most of the agricultural sectors. In the sectors 1, 6, 8, 9, 10 and 11, real capital costs accounts for less than 5 percent of factor costs. In these sectors we assume there is no capital, thus GDP at factor costs is all due to returns to labour. In the other sectors, distribution of value added between labour and capital is found in the reviews. We first make the assumption that the use of capital is optimal and that the zero-profit condition holds. We do however not know the distribution between depreciation and returns to capital, or the stock of capital. Thus we have to make additional assumptions either about the stock of capital or about the rate of depreciation. Quite arbitrary, we assume the latter to be 10 percent. Together with our assumption on the overall rate of return to capital, we are able to split the part of value added that is due to real capital into returns to capital and depreciation, and to estimate the stock of capital.

Labour costs, the value of depreciation and value added in the sectors 14-Food and Beverages, 15-Textiles, 16-Manufacturing and 18-Electricity are found in the industrial survey. The cost shares of labour and depreciation in 1988 are used to find the distribution of income in these sectors in 1990. According to the industrial survey, depreciation in the textile industry was larger than value added in 1988. We have used the average ratio of depreciation to value added for "Total Industry" from the industrial survey to calculate the depreciation in the sectors 14-Food and Beverages, 15-Textiles and 16-Manufacturing. Thus we ignore the negative net value added in the textile industry. The returns to capital follows as a residual, and this enables us to estimate the stock of real capital, given that the rate of return is 25 percent. Our estimate for the stock of capital enables us to calculate the rate of depreciation.

In the sectors 12-Livestock and 13-Forestry, Fishing and Hunting, it seem reasonable to assume that labour is the most important factor of production and that the stock of real capital is low. We assume that wages are 95 percent of GDP, the rate of return to capital is 25 percent and the rate of depreciation is 10 percent. For the remaining sectors; 17-Constructions, 19-Transport and Communication and 20-Other private services, we use the 1976 input-output table to find rough shares of labour, depreciation and returns to capital in GDP.

We have already assumed all production to take place in private sectors, and that the public sector uses labour and materials only. The NA figure for value added in the public sector (35 134 mill Tsh.) is thus assumed to be returns to labour.

Table 5 in Appendix 2 summarises our estimates. Compared to total gross investments, which according to the NA (and applied in our SAM) is 217 404 mill. Tsh., our estimated stock of capital is quite low at 230 354 mill Tsh. As total depreciation is 29 553 mill Tsh, net investments is 187 849 mill. Tsh., implying that the stock of real capital almost dubles during this one year. Most likely, either our stock of capital estimate is too low or the investment figure from the NA is too high. Our stock of capital estimate is dependent on the assumptions regarding returns to labour versus returns to capital and depreciation. High shares of returns to labour reduces the estimate of the stock of capital, given the rate of return and depreciation-assumptions. Given the share of returns to labour in value added, high rates of depreciation and returns to capital-assumptions also reduces the resulting estimate for the stock of capital. Accordingly, either our figure for returns to labour, the rate of return, or the rate of depreciation, or all these factors, may be to high. Leaving out real capital in the public sector also contributes to a low stock of capital-estimate. On the other hand, the NA figure for investments may include goods like tools and plants, that in our tradition of work is defined as materials and not as real capital. As we have based our figures on official statistics, apart from for the sectors 12-Livestock and 13-Forestry, Fishing and Hunting (which in any case is unlikely to contribute a lot when in comes to the stock of capital), we leave our estimates as they are.

Our shares of returns to labour, returns to capital and depreciation in GDP is 80, 13 and 7 percent respectively. The corresponding figures according to the NA is 14, 83 and 3 percent. Thus, the largest difference between the NA figures and ours is when it comes to the distribution of income between returns to capital and labour. Our estimate of private income, which is returns to labour and capital, is 409 173 mill Tsh. and the NA figure for National Income at factor cost is 355 585 mill. Tsh. As we have allocated all incomes from real capital to the private sectors, the two income terms should be equal. The discrepancy occurs because the NA figure subtracts net factor incomes from abroad and imputed bank service charges.

In the non-agricultural sectors 12-20, the cost share of labour-parameters (α_i) required for the model's production functions, are found as the ratio between returns to labour and value added. In the agricultural sectors 1-11, the costs share of labourparameters are calculated as the ratio between returns to labour, and GDP plus inputs of fertilisers. In these sectors, the cost share of capital (β_i) are calculated as the ratio between returns to capital and GDP plus inputs of fertilisers. In the sectors 6,8 and 9, there is no inputs of fertilisers according to our sources of data on input use in the agricultural sectors. We do however want our model to be able to handle future inputs of fertilisers in these sectors as well, and have included this input in the production function; we want the parameter that measures the cost share of fertilisers $(1 - \alpha_i) (-\beta_i)$ when included)) to be greater than zero. Accordingly, we have adjusted our estimates of the cost shares of labour (and capital when included) somewhat downwards in order for the $1 - \alpha_i (-\beta_i)$ -parameter to be greater than zero, and at the same time not large enough to obscure the lines and columns of our base year input-output matrix. Table 6 in Appendix 2 displays our cost share parameters.

4.4.2 Sectoral investments

In the SAM we have so far only made assumptions about deliveries of investment goods. In the previous paragraph we calculated sectoral capital stocks at the beginning of 1990 and replacement investments at the end of 1990 (depreciation). For the model, we also need to know in which sectors investments are taking place, and how these sectoral investments are distributed between the two investment goods in the model.

Table 16 of the National Accounts provides information about gross fixed capital formation by sector. According to these figures the primary sectors 1-13 accounted for 54 percent of investments in 1990, while the corresponding figure for 1988 was less than 3 percent. During the 1980's the investments in the primary sectors have been around 10 percent of total investments, with declining shares since 1986. We have not been able to find any comments on the large increase in agricultural investments from 1988 to 1990. Furthermore, the growth does not correspond to capital stock figures from the annual crop-reviews. Until we have more information about the subject, we are sceptical to the enormous increase in agricultural investments. As a result, we distribute investments between the sectors of destination and origin on the basis of a few more reasonable assumptions.

Total gross investments, which are all private, are allocated between the sectors in accordance with the share of real capital found in the previous section. Table 7 in Appendix 2 displays the results.

Future demand for investment goods in the nonagricultural sectors will be determined by the first order condition for profit maximisation by the model. A constant share of net investments will however be allocated to each agricultural sector $(m_j$ in the model). We apply the same shares as we just used to allocate gross investments between sectors. According to our estimates, agricultural capital added up was less than two percent of total capital in 1990. The agricultural investment shares are displayed in Table 7, Appendix 2.

Only the industrial survey provides any information on the allocation of investment demand. To distribute gross investments between our two sectors of origin, we first make the assumption that investments in the agricultural sectors are all of the commodity 16-Manufacturing. Second, the industrial survey distributes gross investments between different types of investment goods for the sectors 14-Food and Beverages, 15-Textiles, 16-Manufacturing and 18-Electricity. We apply the share of "buildings" in each sector's gross investments to calculate these sector's demand for commodity 17-Constructions. Furthermore, we assume that demand for constructions amounts to 5 percent of gross investments in the sectors 17-Constructions and 19-Transport and Communication. What is left of the supply of constructions is allocated to sector 20-Other private services. The sectoral demand for commodity 16-Manufacturing follow as residuals. Table 8 in Appendix 2 summarises our findings. The investment by destination-investment by origin- coefficients (b_{ij}) are now given as the ratio between demand for each good in each sector and total gross investment in that sector. The coefficients are displayed in the last two columns of Table 8, Appendix 2.

4.4.3 Aggregate income and savings

To assign numbers to the marginal propensity to consume parameter and the income tax rate, and to check that savings in fact equals net investment, we have to make estimates of the various components of income and savings. Applying our estimates of returns to labour and real capital, subtracting the Economic Survey 1991 value of 41 765 mill. Tsh., which is "Income taxes and other taxes" (indirect taxes not include, Table 18 in the survey), which we assume to be income taxes only, we get private disposable income (Y in the model) of 367 408 mill. Tsh. The implicit income tax rate is 10 percent. With private consumption being 394 530 mill. Tsh., the marginal propensity to consume (c) is 1.07. The savings rate (1-c) is -0.07, and private savings is thus negative and equal to - 27 122 mill. Tsh. in the base year. In the model (as in accordance with the NA), excess private consumption over private income is covered by foreign transfers.

In our model framework, where we have assumed all sectors of production to be private, government income is due to tax revenues only. In paragraph 4.1.2, we distributed the NA value of indirect taxes of 94 280 mill. Tsh. between sales taxes and cus-

Table 12. Aggregate income and its application. Mill. Tsh. 409 173 Private income 41 765 -Income tax =Private disposable income 367 408 394 530 -Private consumption =Private saving -27 122 136 045 Government revenue 59 396 Sales tax 7 326 Export tax 27 558 Import tax 41 765 Income tax -Government consumption 52 637 =Government savings 83 408 Foreign transfers 172 055 187 849 Total saving 187 849 Net Investments

toms duties, and the revenue from customs duties between import and export taxes (paragraph 4.1.6). Adding the revenue from income taxes of 41 765 mill. Tsh., we get total government income of 136 045 mill. Tsh. With government consumption being 52 637 mill. Tsh., government savings is 83 408 mill. Tsh.

Foreign transfers equals the trade defecit net of customs duties, which is 172 055 mill. Tsh. in the model base year. Adding foreign transfers (often refered to as foreign savings), and private and public savings and subtracting changes in stocks of 40 492 mill. Tsh. yields total savings of 187 849 mill. Tsh., which eauals the net investment figure calculated in the preceeding paragraph. To summarise, we have the values displayed in Table 12.

4.4.4 The Linear Expenditure System

To our knowledge, up to date information on private consumption in Tanzania is largely restricted to unpublished expenditure data on 423 households from december 1991. This material is part of the Household Budget Survey 1991/1992 conducted by the Bureau of Statistics, Dar es Salaam. The full survey is however not yet available. The december survey supplies information on the household size and geographical location (Dar es Salaam, other towns, urban municipalities or rural areas), as well as one months consumption of more than 30 commodities.

Intentionally, private consumption was to be allocated between the model goods on the basis of the consumption pattern that follows from the Household Budget Survey (HBS). That is, 1990 average budget shares where assumed to equal the budget shares calculated for the sample. However, when applying the sample budget shares on the value of total private consumption from the 1990 National Accounts (394 530 mill. Tsh), consumption of several goods turned out to be higher than output. Furthermore, the derived budget shares did not correspond very well with the weights in the Consumer Price Index. As discussed in section 4.3.4, a different approach was applied to calculate private consumption. The two first columns of Table 9 in Appendix 2 displays private consumption as calculated for the SAM and the corresponding budget shares.

We make no further attempts to utilize the 1991/92 HBS. Instead, we base our estimates of the parameters of the LES on information found in a study by Sarris and van der Brink (1993) on household welfare in Tanzania. This work is largely based on the 1976/77 HBS. One result in Sarris and van der Brink is that per capita subsistence expenditure in rural households amounts to 52 per cent of total expenditure. The corresponding figure in urban households is around 9 per cent. In 1991, 82 per cent of the population lived in rural areas¹². Applying these shares, we assume that 45 per cent of total consumption in 1990, or 177 539 mill. Tsh, may be classified as subsistence expenditure.

According to Sarris and van der Brink (Table 33), subsistence expenditure in low income, rural households amounts to approximately 97 percent of their total expenditure. This finding gives some support to our next and somewhat basic assumption. We assume that the average Tanzanian household allocates their minimum expenditure between goods in the same way as the poor rural households allocates total expenditure. Accordingly, the estimated total minimum expenditure of 177 539 mill. Tsh. is allocated between the model commodities on the basis of budget shares in the low income rural households in the study by Sarris and van der Brink (Table 33).

Sarris and van der Brink applies the same classification of goods as the one used in the CPI, displayed in Table 11, paragraph 4.3.4. As the study reports one budget share for total food consumption, additional information and assumptions are needed in order to distribute subsistence expenditure on food between our model commodities 1-14. Table 41 in Sarris and van der Brink shows daily calorie intake of various foods in rural households, divided between subsistence and monetary quantities. This enables us to calculate the share of total calorie intake derived from subsistence consumption for each food item. These shares are then assumed to equal the share of subsistence consumption to total consumption of a similar model food item. We may then calculate the value of the subsistence consumption of each food, and derive the subsistence budget shares. Finally, these subsistence budget shares are scaled down proportionally to add to 0.85, which is the approximate share of foods in total subsistence expenditure in the low income rural households. The resulting subsistence budget shares correspond to the γ_i -parameter of the LES.

Our estimates of subsistence quantities, together with our figures for total consumption of each good determines the non-subsistence consumption of each good, and by that also the non-subsistence budget shares κ_j .

Table 9 in Appendix 2 displays consumption figures, budget shares and LES-parameters. The last column of the table displays the elasticities of income

¹² The Economic Survey 1991, p.92, (the Planning Commission, 1991).

that derive from our calculated parameters and figures. According to these estimates, all food crops are normal goods with elasticities between 0 and 1. Livestock, (which delivers meat and milk for consumption), Forestry, fishing and hunting (fish for consumption), all manufactured foods and other goods, and services are all luxury goods with elasticities greater than 1. Construction (housing) has the highest elasticity of income (1.8), Transport and Communication and Other private services has the second largest (1.7). All in all, our elasticities seem quite reasonable.

4.4.5 Trade

Next, we have to make assumptions regarding the elasticities between imports (I_i) and domestically produced goods (XD_i) , and between export (A_i) and deliveries for the domestic market (XD_i) . Commonly, commodities that are considered the most tradable are given higher elasticities than the ones that are considered less tradable. The middle column of Table 10 in Appendix 2 displays our base case assumptions regarding substitution between imports and domestic goods, and the middle column of Table 11 displays the assumptions regarding the substitution between export and domestic goods. Whenever a commodity is both imported and exported the elasticities are assumed to be equal. All crops are given high elasticities (0.9), services and transport and communications are given low elasticities (0.3) and the elasticities for industrial products are given elasticities between the high and low ones (0.6). The elasticities may be altered in sensitivity analysis, and the ones displayed here are merely our default values.

Given the assumptions regarding the elasticities of trade, the share parameter in the export supply and import demand equations are calculated. The share parameters and the elasticities then determine the values of the shift variables in the CES and CET equations. Note that all parameters are calibrated with base year domestic market prices set to unity. Share parameters and shift variables are also shown in Tables 10 and 11 in Appendix 2, together with the base year values of total production (X_j) , deliveries for the domestic market (XD_j) , export (A_j) , imports (I_j) and the value of the composite good (XC_j) .

4.4.6 Government intermediate consumption

Finally, we have to calculate the parameters measuring the government's demand for labour (g) and intermediate inputs of each composite (a_{Gj}) . The demand for labour parameter is the ratio between public labour costs (or returns to labour) of 35 134 mill. Tsh., and total government consumption of 52 637 mill. Tsh. This gives a value of the cost share of labour of 0.67.

The government demand for intermediate inputparameters are simply the share of total government consumption, directed at each good. Accordingly, the values are found as the ratio between government consumption of each good, and total government intermediate consumption, found in Table 4, Appendix 2. Table 12 in the appendix displays the coefficients.

.

5. Conclusions

In this report, we document a Computable General Equilibrium model for the economy of Tanzania, the Social Accounting Matrix underlying the model, and the calibration of model parameters. The model is developed to account for effects of land degradation processes; this report does, however, only deal with the pure economic part of the model, treating land degradation as an exogenous variable in the agricultural production functions. The model presented here is quite standard; producers maximises profits subject to Cobb Douglas production functions, households maximise utility and distribute expenditure according to a linear expenditure system. The model exhibits two way trade assuming imperfect substitution between domestically produced and imported varieties of each good, and between production for the domestic market and export. Prices are endogenous and adjust to obtain market equilibria. Economic growth occurs through growth in the stock of capital, which is determined by savings (which again are largely exogenous, as a major part consists of foreign transfers), exogenous technological progress, and declines in the land degradation processes (which are treated as exogenous in this report, but are endogenous and dependent on the application of fertilisers in the complete model).

The SAM underlying the model is mostly based on official Tanzanian statistics. The Tanzanian Bureau of Statistics provides a number of publications on economic data. Tanzania is however still in the process of developing National Accounting procedures, and the data available are often somewhat inconsistent as different sources often give different figures for what should be the same issue. Much of the official data are based on outdated information from the 1976 input-output table. Furthermore, apart from the agricultural sectors, we have found no gross production figures. To develop the SAM presented above, several somewhat arbitrary and rough assumptions were made. Other assumptions would of course give a different SAM, which may be just as reasonable as the one presented here. Accordingly, it is important to adjust the SAM and

the model parameters as new information becomes available.

References

Agrawal, N., Z. Ahmed, M. Mered and R. Nord (1993): Structural Adjustment, Economic Performance, and Aid Dependency in Tanzania. Policy Research Working Paper, WPS 1204, the World Bank.

Aune, J., A. Brendemoen, S. Glomsrød and V. Iversen (1994): Modelling structural adjustment policy and land degradation in Tanzania. Forthcoming in the series Occasional Papers, Agricultural University of Norway

Bank of Tanzania (1991): Economic Bulletin, Vol. 21, No. 1. Dar es Salaam.

Bureau of Statistics (1988): Survey of Industrial Production 1988. Dar es Salaam.

Bureau of Statistics (1993a): National Accounts of Tanzania 1976-1992. Dar es Salaam.

Bureau of Statistics (1993b): Foreign Trade Statistics 1990. Dar es Salaam.

Deaton, A. and J. Muellbauer (1987): *Economics and consumer behavior*. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge.

de Melo, J. and S. Robinson (1989): Product differentiation and the treatment of trade in computable general equilibrium models of small economies. *Journal of International Economics*, 27, North-Holland.

Economic Research Bureau (1991): Tanzanian Economic Trends: A Quarterly Review of the Economy, Vol.4, No. 1, 1991. The Economic Research Bureau of the University of Dar es Salaam and the Planning Commission. Dar es Salaam.

Economic Research Bureau (1993): Tanzanian Economic Trends: A Quarterly Review of the Economy, Vol.6, No. 1 and 2, 1993. The Economic Research Bureau of the University of Dar es Salaam and the Planning Commission. Dar es Salaam. Komba, J.M. and Wagao, J.H (eds.) (1986): Utilization of the Tanzania input-output table 1976. Proceedings of a national workshop of utilization of the Tanzania input-output table, Arusha 24-28 February, 1986. Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Planning, Dar es Salaam.

Ministry of Finance, Economic Affairs and Planning (1986): Utilization of the Tanzanian Input-Output table 1976. Dar es Salaam.

Planning Commission (1992): Economic Survey 1991. Dar es Salaam.

Robinson, S. (1989): Multisectoral Models, in H. Chenery and T.N. Srinivasan (eds.): Handbook of Development Economics, Vol. II. Elsevier Science Publishers B. V.

Sarris, A. H. and R. van der Brink (1993): Economic Policy and Household Welfare during Crisis and Adjustment in Tanzania. New York University Press, New York.

Stäglin, R. and J.M. Komba (eds.) (1992): Revised National Accounts of Tanzania, Statistical Office of the European Communities.

Stoorvogel J. J and Smaling E. M. A. (1990): Assessment of soil nutrient depletion in Sub-Saharan Africa, Report 28, Vol I, The Winand Staring Centre, Wageningen, Holland

World Bank (1991): Towards Sustainable Development in the 1990s. Economic report, Tanzania.

Appendix 1. Model equations, list of sectors and variables

Model equations. The figure in parenthesis refers to the equation numbers in chapter 3. The last column shows the number of equations.

	Agricultural			T
1 (1)	production	$X = B \cdot S \cdot L^{a_j} K^{\beta_j} F^{1-a_j - \beta_j}_{j = j = j = j = j = j = j = j = j = j =$	j ∈ AG1	5
2 (6)	Agricultural production	$X_j = B_j S_j L_j^{\bullet, F_j^{1-\bullet_j}}$	j ∈ AG2	6
3 (7)	Industrial production	$X_j = B_j L_j^{\alpha_j} K_j^{1-\alpha_j}$	j ∈ IND	9
4 (2,8)	Intermediate inputs	$M_j = X_j \cdot \Sigma_i a_{ij}$	j∈J i∈J	20
5 (4,9)	Demand for labour	<i>W_jL_j=X_j·α_j</i> (<i>P_j-Σ_iα_{ij} P</i> C _i)	j∈J i∈J	20
6 (5)	Demand for fertilisers	$PC_{\mathbf{i}\mathbf{b}'}(1+TF_j)\cdot F_j=X_j\cdot(1-\alpha_j-\beta_j)\cdot(P_j-\Sigma_j\alpha_{\mathbf{i}\mathbf{j}'}PC_{\mathbf{i}})$	j ∈ AG1+AG2 i ∈ J	11
7 (10)	Demand for capital	$PK_{j}(\mathbf{R}+\delta_{j})\cdot K_{j}=X_{j}\cdot(1-\alpha_{j})\cdot(\mathbf{P}_{j}-\Sigma_{j}\mathbf{A}_{ij}\cdot \mathbf{P}C_{j})$	j∈ IND i∈ J	9
8 (3)	Price on · capital	$PK_{j}=\Sigma_{i}PC_{i}b_{ij}$	j ∈ AG1+IND i ∈ 16,17	14
9 (11)	Import price	$PI_j = PW_j \in R(1+TI_j)$	j∈J	20
10 (14)	Composite price	$PC_j XC_j = PD_j XD_j + PI_j I_j$	j∈J	20
11 (13)	Composite aggregation	$\mathcal{XC}_{j} = Q_{j} \left[q_{j} L_{j}^{-\tau_{j}} + (1 - q_{j}) \mathcal{XD}^{-\tau_{j}} \right]^{-\frac{1}{\tau_{j}}}$	j∈J	20
12 (15)	Demand for imports	$\frac{I_j}{XD_j} = \left[\frac{PD_j}{PI_j} \cdot \frac{q_j}{(1-q_j)}\right]^{e_j}$	j∈J	20
13 (12)	Export price	PA _j ·(1+TA _j)=PW _j ·ER	j∈J	20
14 (17)	Value of sale	$P_j X_j = PD_j (1 - TS_j) XD_j + PA_j A_j$	j∈J	20

15 (16)	Allocation of goods	$X_{j} = H_{j} \left[h_{j} A_{j}^{\rho_{j}} + (1 - h_{j}) X D_{j}^{\rho_{j}} \right]^{\frac{1}{\rho_{j}}}$	j∈J	20
16 (18)	Supply of export	$\frac{A_j}{XD_j} = \left[\frac{PA_j}{PD_j(1-TS_j)} \cdot \frac{(1-h_j)}{h_j}\right]^{\alpha_j}$	j∈J	20
17 (19)	Private income	$Y = (1 - TY) \cdot \left[\sum_{m} W_{m} L_{m} + W_{G} L_{G} + \sum_{k} PK_{i} \cdot R \cdot K_{i} + \sum_{k} (X_{k} \cdot (P_{k} - \sum_{j} a_{jk} \cdot PC_{j}) - PC_{16} \cdot F_{k} - \delta_{k} \cdot K_{k}) \right]$	m ∈ AG2+ IND i ∈ IND k ∈ AG2 j ∈ J	1
18 (20)	Private ex- penditure	E=cY		1
19 (21)	Private con- sumption	<i>ΡC_J</i> ·C _J = <i>ΡC_J</i> γ _J +κ _J ·(E-Σ _i <i>PC_l</i> γ _i)	j∈J i∈J	20
20 (22)	Public revenue	$GR = \sum_{j} (IS_{j}PD_{j}XD_{j}+IA_{j}PA_{j}A_{j}+II_{j}PW_{j}I_{j}ER)$ $+ IY[\sum_{m}W_{m}\cdot L_{m}+W_{G}\cdot L_{G}+\sum_{i}PK_{i}R\cdot K_{i}+\sum_{k}(X_{k}\cdot (P_{k}-\sum_{j}a_{jk}\cdot PC_{j})$ $- PC_{16}\cdot F_{k}-\delta_{k}\cdot K_{k})]+\sum_{i}IF_{i}PC_{16}\cdot F_{i}$	j ∈ J m ∈ AG2+IND i ∈ IND k ∈ AG2 s ∈ AG1+AG2	1
21 (23)	Public revenue application	$GR=C_{G}+S_{G}$		1
22 (24)	Public demand for labour	&C _G =W _G ∶L _G		1
23 (25)	Public demand for inter- mediates	PC _f :M _G =a _G ·(1−g)-C _G	j∈J	20
24 (26)	Total net investments	$J=(1-c)\cdot Y+S_{G}+Z\cdot ER-\Sigma_{f}CS_{f}$	j∈J	1
25 (27)	Agricultural net invest- ments	<i>m_j·J=</i> (D K _j -δ _j ·K _{j,t})·PK _j	j ∈ AG1	5
26 (28)	Agricultural capital	$K_{j,t+1}=DK_{j}+(1-\delta_{j})\cdot K_{j,t}$	j ∈ AG1	5
27 (29)	Non-agricul- tural invest- ments	$DK_{j}=K_{j,t+1}-(1-\delta_{j})\cdot K_{j,t}$	j ∈ IND	9
28 (30)	Equilibrium savings-net investments	$J \cdot (1 - \Sigma_i m_i) = \Sigma_j [(DK_j - \delta_j \cdot K_{j,i}) \cdot PK_j]$	j ∈ IND i ∈ AG1	1
29 (31)	Equilibrium, composite 16	$XC_{16} = \sum_{j} a_{16j} X_{j} + \sum_{k} F_{k} + M_{G16} + C_{16} + \sum_{k} b_{16i} DK_{k} + CS_{16}$	j ∈ J k ∈ AG1+AG2 i ∈ AG1+IND	1
30 (32)	Equilibrium, composite 17	$XC_{17} = \sum_{j} a_{17j} X_j + M_{G17} + C_{17} + \sum_{i} b_{17i} DK_i + CS_{17i}$	j∈J i∈AG1+IND	1
31 (33)	Equilibrium, other com- posites	$XC_j = \sum_i a_{ji} \cdot X_i + M_{Qj} + C_j + CS_j$	j ∈ J-16-17 i ∈ J	18

Commodity/Sector list (J)	AG1	AG2	IND
1. Cotton		*	
2. Coffee	*		
3. Tea	*		
4. Tobacco	*		
5. Cashew	*		
6. Cassava		*	
7. Maize	*		
8. Rice		*	
9. Sorghum		*	
10. Beans		*	
11. Other crops and cereals		*	
12. Livestock			*
13. Forestry, Fishing and Hunting			*
14. Food and Beverages industries			*
15. Textiles			*
16. Other manufacturing sectors, Mining and Quarrying			*
17. Construction			*
18. Electricity			*
19. Transport and Communication			*

List of variables

Endogenous:

Aj	Export	(20)
Ćj	Private consumption	(20)
ĎК _і	Demand for real investments, j=2-5,7,12-20	(14)
ĠŔ	Government revenue	(1)
Ε	Total private expenditure	(1)
Fj	Use of fertilisers, j=1-11	(11)
Í	Imports	(20)
Ĵ	Total nominal investments	(1)
K _{j,t+}	1 Demand for real capital, j=2-5,7,12-20	(14)
ĹG	Government demand for labour	(1)
Lj	Demand for labour	(20)
М _і	Demand for intermediate inputs	(20)
М́ _{Gj}	Government demand for intermediate inputs	(20)
Pj	Composite gross production price	(20)
Ρ́Α _i	Producers export price	(20)
PĆi	Composite price of domestic and imported commodities	(20)
PĎi	Domestic market price	(20)
ΡΙj	Import price	(20)
PK _i	Price of real capital, j=2-5,7,12-20	(14)
Ŕ	Rate of return to real capital	(1)
SG	Government savings	(1)
Xj	Gross production	(20)
Х́С _і	Composite good	(20)
ΧĎi	Gross production sold at the domestic market	(20)
Ύ	Private disposable income	(1)
	-	=340

Table 11

Exog	genous:	Base year value:
Bj	Factor neutral technological change	1 ∀ j
Ć _G	Nominal government consumption	52362
CS _j	Change in stocks	Table 4
EŔ	Exchange rate	1
Hj	Shift variable in the export transformation function	Table 11
K _{j,t}	Stock of capital, beginning of the year, $j=2-5,7,12-20$	Table 7
PW _i	World market price	1∀j
,	Shift variable in the import substitution function	Table 10
Q _j S _j	Land degradation variable, $j=1-11$	1∀j
ź	Foreign transfers	172055
ΤA _i	Export tax rate	0.87 for j =1-5, 0.00 for j ≠ 1-5.
ΤF _i	Fertiliser tax rate, j=1-11	0.00 ∀ j
ΤĬj	Import tax rate	0.11 for j=11,14,15,16,20,
,	-	0.00 for j ≠11,14,15,16,20.
TS _i	Sales tax rate	$TS_{14}=0.18$, $TS_{15}=0.13$, $TS_{16}=0.17$,
,		$TS_i = 0.00$ for $j \neq 14$, 15, 16.
TY	Income tax rate	0.10
Wi	Wage rate	1∀j
Ŵ _G	Wage rate public sector	1
-		

Par	ameters:	Base year value:
a _{Gj}	Government intermediate consumption coefficient	Table 12
a _{ij}	Input-output coefficient	Table 3
b _{ij}	Investment by origin-investment by destination coefficient, $i=16,17, j=2-5,7,12-20$	Table 8
ເັ	Marginal propensity to consume	1.07
g	Cost share of labour in government consumption	0.67
ĥ _j	Export share	Table 11
m _j	Agricultural sector j's share of investments, $j=2-5,7$	Table 7
q _j	Import share	Table 10
$\tilde{\alpha_j}$	Cost share of labour	Table 6
βj	Cost share of real capital, j=2-5,7	Table 6
Кj	Budget shares, non-subsistence private consumption	Table 9
	Subsistence quantities, private consumption	Table 9
Υj δj	Depreciation rate of real capital, j=2-5,7,12-20	Table 5
τ _j	Constant elasticity of substitution parameter	Table 10
ε	Elasticity of import substitution	Table 10
ρ _j	Constant elasticity of transformation parameter	Table 11

Constant elasticity of transformation parameter

 $\hat{\rho_j}$ Ω_j Elasticity of export transformation

Appendix 2. Tables

Table 1. Components of domestic supply

	Gross product at		Gross product at	Gross production at			Total domestic
	factor costs	Sales tax	market prices	market prices (Xj)	Imports (Ij)	Export (A _j)	supply (XC j)
1 Cotton	1818		1818	7114		1250	5864
2 Coffee	2659		2659	5873		5783	90
3 Tea	1029		1029	1232		341	891
4 Tobacco	178		178	995	41	664	372
5 Cashew	280		280	1380		336	1044
6 Cassava	9276		9276	9396			9396
7 Maize	19060		19060	26895			26895
8 Rice	7911		7911	9139	551		9690
9 Sorghum	3550		3550	4118			4118
10 Beans	8786		8786	10579			10579
11 Other Crops	125821		125821	129970	5728	18675	117023
12 Livestock	38304		38304	42560	1121	855	42826
13 Forestry, fishing, hunting	15133		15133	16814	372	3416	13770
14 Food and Beverages	5490	14106	19596	78384	3756	1168	80972
15 Textiles	2928	7524	10452	61482	7141	4439	64184
16 Other Manufacturing	14698	37766	52464	228104	243834	9452	462486
17 Construction	23053		23053	57118			57118
18 Electricity	4760		4760	7677			7677
19 Transport and Communication	36242		36242	48323		14000	34323
20 Other private Services	82616		82616	188580	18296	13522	193354
Sum	403592	59396	462988	935734	280840	73901	1142673

A Computable General Equilibrium Model for Tanzania

Input:	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	1
Dutput:											
1 Cotton	687										
2 Coffee		90									
З Теа			185								
4 Tobacco				140							
5 Cashew											
6 Cassava							2000				
7 Maize							2600	643			
8 Rice								612	224		
9 Sorghum									334	4 495	
0 Beans										1425	
1 Other Crops											205
2 Livestock											
3 Forestry, fishing, hunting											
4 Food and Beverages											
5 Textiles	420	32		90	390	120	1170	450	180	90	9
6 Other Manufacturing	3557	2917	11	497	690		1794		120	1000	
7 Construction											
8 Electricity											
9 Transport and Communication	632	175	7	90	20		2271	166	54	158	10
0 Other private Services											
	5200	2214	202	017	1100	120	7835	1228	568	1793	41
um Material inputs	5296	3214	203	817	1100	120	/635	1220			
Gross Product at market prices	1818	2659	1029	178	280	9276	19060	7911	3550	8786	1258
Gross Production at market prices	7114	5873	1232	995	1380	9396	26895	9139	4118	10579	12997
	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	Sum	Materi inp
1 Cotton				5177							58
2 Coffee				5							9
3 Tea			706								8
4 Tobacco			232								3
5 Cashew			564								5
6 Cassava			504								
7 Maize			2516								51
8 Rice			2221								28
			356								6
			550						380		18
9 Sorghum									7313		282
0 Beans			11001	7586	166						
0 Beans 1 Other Crops			11091	7586	166 1461						65
0 Beans 1 Other Crops 2 Livestock		175	516	7586	1461	117/			4585		
0 Beans 1 Other Crops 2 Livestock 3 Forestry, fishing, hunting	1577	125	516 108	7586	1461 1001	1174			4585 7767		101
0 Beans 1 Other Crops 2 Livestock 3 Forestry, fishing, hunting 4 Food and Beverages	1537		516 108 5372		1461 1001 826	1174			4585 7767 22695		101 304
0 Beans 1 Other Crops 2 Livestock 3 Forestry, fishing, hunting 4 Food and Beverages 5 Textiles	321	684	516 108 5372 1464	4155	1461 1001 826 3033		1008	531/	4585 7767 22695 451		101 304 131
0 Beans 1 Other Crops 2 Livestock 3 Forestry, fishing, hunting 4 Food and Beverages 5 Textiles 6 Other Manufacturing			516 108 5372 1464 7890	4155 17122	1461 1001 826 3033 83511	21270	1998 124	5314	4585 7767 22695 451 18916		101 304 131 1677
0 Beans 1 Other Crops 2 Livestock 3 Forestry, fishing, hunting 4 Food and Beverages 5 Textiles 6 Other Manufacturing 7 Construction	321	684	516 108 5372 1464 7890 68	4155 17122 23	1461 1001 826 3033 83511 1776	21270 86	124	1287	4585 7767 22695 451 18916 5214		65 101 304 131 1677 85 40
0 Beans 1 Other Crops 2 Livestock 3 Forestry, fishing, hunting 4 Food and Beverages 5 Textiles 6 Other Manufacturing 7 Construction 8 Electricity	321	684 393	516 108 5372 1464 7890 68 344	4155 17122 23 363	1461 1001 826 3033 83511 1776 1774	21270 86 40	124 60	1287 111	4585 7767 22695 451 18916 5214 1346		101 304 131 1677 85 40
0 Beans 1 Other Crops 2 Livestock 3 Forestry, fishing, hunting 4 Food and Beverages 5 Textiles 6 Other Manufacturing 7 Construction 8 Electricity 9 Transport and Communication	321	684	516 108 5372 1464 7890 68	4155 17122 23	1461 1001 826 3033 83511 1776	21270 86	124	1287	4585 7767 22695 451 18916 5214		101 304 131 1677 85
0 Beans 1 Other Crops 2 Livestock 3 Forestry, fishing, hunting 4 Food and Beverages 5 Textiles 6 Other Manufacturing 7 Construction 8 Electricity 9 Transport and Communication 0 Other private Services	321 751	684 393 96	516 108 5372 1464 7890 68 344 1155	4155 17122 23 363 274	1461 1001 826 3033 83511 1776 1774 5689	21270 86 40 1328	124 60 160	1287 111 741	4585 7767 22695 451 18916 5214 1346 8383		101 304 131 1677 85 40 223
0 Beans 1 Other Crops 2 Livestock 3 Forestry, fishing, hunting 4 Food and Beverages 5 Textiles 6 Other Manufacturing 7 Construction 8 Electricity 9 Transport and Communication	321 751 1647	684 393 96 383	516 108 5372 1464 7890 68 344 1155 24185	4155 17122 23 363 274 16330	1461 1001 826 3033 83511 1776 1774 5689 76403	21270 86 40 1328 10168	124 60 160 575	1287 111 741 4628	4585 7767 22695 451 18916 5214 1346 8383 28913		101 304 131 1677 85 40 223 1632

Table 3. Input-Output	coeficients (a _{ll})										
Input: Output:	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	
1 Cotton 2 Coffee 3 Tea 4 Tobacco 5 Cashew 6 Cassava	0.0966	0.0153	0.1502	0.1407							
7 Maize 8 Rice 9 Sorghum 10 Beans 11 Other Crops 12 Livestock 13 Forestry, fishing, hunting	1						0.0967	0.0670	0.0811	0.1347	
14 Food and Beverages 15 Textiles 16 Other Manufacturing - 17 Construction 18 Electricity	0.0590	0.0054		0.0905	0.2826	0.0128	0.0435	0.0492	0.0437	0.0085	
19 Transport and Communication 20 Other private Services	0.0888	0.0298	0.0057	0.0905	0.0145		0.0844	0.0182	0.0131	0.0149	
	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	
1 Cotton 2 Coffee					0.0842						
3 Tea 4 Tobacco 5 Cashew 6 Cassava				0.0090 0.0030 0.0072							
7 Maize 8 Rice 9 Sorghum				0.0321 0.0283 0.0045							
10 Beans 11 Other Crops 12 Livestock 13 Forestry, fishing, hunting 14 Food and Beverages		0.0361	0.0074	0.1415 0.0066 0.0014 0.0685	0.1234	0.0007 0.0064 0.0044 0.0036	0.0205			0.0020 0.0388 0.0243 0.0412 0.1203	
15 Textiles 16 Other Manufacturing 17 Construction 18 Electricity 19 Transport and	0.0007	0.0075 0.0176	0.0407 0.0234	0.0187 0.1007 0.0009 0.0044	0.0676 0.2785 0.0004 0.0059	0.0133 0.3661 0.0078 0.0078	0.3724 0.0015 0.0007	0.2603 0.0162 0.0078	0.1100 0.0266 0.0023	0.0024 0.1003 0.0276 0.0071	
Communication 20 Other private Services	0.0077	0.0387	0.0057 0.0228	0.0147 0.3085	0.0045 0.2656	0.0249 0.3349	0.0233 0.1780	0.0208 0.0749	0.0153 0.0958	0.0445 0.1533	

Table 4. Intermediate input and final deliveries								
	Material inputs	Private consumption	Government consumption	Investments	Change in stock	Total domestic demand		
	(Σ _i a _{ij} X _i)	(C _j)	(C _{Gj})	(Σb _{ij} DK _i) i	(CS _j)	(XC _j)		
1 Cotton	5864					5864		
2 Coffee	90					90		
3 Tea	891					891		
4 Tobacco	372					372		
5 Cashew	564	480				1044		
6 Cassava	504	9396				9396		
7 Maize	5116	21779				26895		
8 Rice	2833	6857				9690		
9 Sorghum	690	3428				4118		
10 Beans	1805	8774				10579		
11 Other Crops	28215	88808				117023		
12 Livestock	6562	35974	290			42826		
13 Forestry, fishing, hunting	10175	2737	858			13770		
14 Food and Beverages	30430	67711	214		-17383	80972		
15 Textiles	13140	31562	295		19187	64184		
16 Other Manufacturing	167750	71015	5004	188619	30098	462486		
17 Construction	8578	19331	424	28785		57118		
18 Electricity	4038	887	2752			7677		
19 Transport and Communication	22399	10009	1915			34323		
20 Other private Services	163232	15781	5751		8590	193354		
Sum	472745	394530	17503	217404	40492	1142673		

Table 5. Distribution of income

	Gross product at factor costs	Returns to Iabour ⟨Wj*Lj)	Returns to capital (R*Kj*PKj)	Depreciation (δj *Kj*PKj)	Rate of depreciation (δj)	Stock of real capital (K _j)
1 Cotton	1818	1818				
2 Coffee	2659	2526	95	38	0,1 0	380
3 Tea	1029	864	118	47	0,10	470
4 Tobacco	178	164	10	4	0,10	41
5 Cashew	280	263	12	5	0,10	48
6 Cassava	9276	9276				
7 Maize	19060	18107	681	272	0,10	2723
8 Rice	7911	7911				
9 Sorghum	3550	3550				
10 Beans	8786	8786				
11 Other Crops	125821	125821				
12 Livestock	38304	36389	1368	547	0,10	5472
13 Forestry, fishing, hunting	15133	14376	540	216	0,10	2162
14 Food and Beverages	5490	1559	1022	2910	0,71	4086
15 Textiles	2928	831	545	1552	0,71	2179
16 Other Manufacturing	14698	4173	2735	7790	0,71	10939
17 Construction	23053	17733	4729	591	0,03	18915
18 Electricity	4760	512	1728	2521	0,36	6912
19 Transport and Communicatio	n 36242	7060	25416	3765	0,04	101666
20 Other private Services	82616	54731	18590	9295	0,13	74361
The Government	35134	35134				
Sum	438726	351584	57589	29553		230354

Table 6. Cost shares of labour, capital and fertilisers.								
	α	β _i	1-α _i -β _i					
1 Cotton	0.3382		0.6618					
2 Coffee	0.4530	0.0238	0.5231					
3 Tea	0.8311	0.1583	0.0106					
4 Tobacco	0.2426	0.0211	0.7363					
5 Cashew	0.2713	0.0173	0.7113					
6 Cassava	0.9999		0.0001					
7 Maize	0.8683	0.0457	0.0860					
8 Rice	0.9999		0.0001					
9 Sorghum	0.9999		0.0001					
10 Beans	0.9864		0.0135					
11 Other Crops	0.9921		0.0079					
12 Livestock	0.9500							
13 Forestry, fishing, hunting	0.9500							
14 Food and Beverages	0.2839							
15 Textiles	0.2839							
16 Other Manufacturing	0.2839							
17 Construction	0.7692							
18 Electricity	0.1075							
19 Transport and Communication	0.1948							
20 Other private Services	0.6625							

Table 7. Investments

	Stock of	Gross	Agricultures's	
	real capital	investments	share of	
	(K _j)	(DK _j)	investments	
			(m _j)	
1 Cotton				
2 Coffee	380	359	0.0017	
3 Tea	470	444	0.0021	
4 Tobacco	41	38	0.0002	
5 Cashew	48	45	0.0002	
6 Cassava				
7 Maize	2723	2570	0.0122	
8 Rice				
9 Sorghum				
10 Beans				
11 Other crops				
12 Livestock	5472	5164		
1 3 Forestry, fishing, hunting	2162	2040		
14 Foods and beverages	4086	3856		
15 Textiles	2179	2057		
16 Other manufacturing	10939	10324		
17 Construction	18915	17852		
18 Electricity	6912	6523		
19 Transport and communication	101666	95950		
20 Other private services	74361	70180		
Sum	230354	217404	0.0164	

Table B. Investments by destination- Invsetments by origin

	Gross investments (DK _j)	Manu- facturing (16)	Constructions (17)	Investments by destination b16j	Investments by destiantion b17j
1 Cotton					
2 Coffee	359	359		1.0000	
3 Tea	444	444		1.0000	
4 Tobacco	38	38		1.0000	
5 Cashew	45	45		1.0000	
6 Cassava					
7 Maize	2570	2570		1.0000	
8 Rice					
9 Sorghum					
10 Beans					
11 Other Crops					
12 Livestock	5164	5164		1.0000	
13 Forestry, fishing, hunting	2040	2040		1.0000	
14 Food and Beverages	3856	2708	1149	0.7022	0.2978
15 Textiles	2057	1642	415	0.7982	0.2018
16 Other Manufacturing	10324	8075	2250	0.7821	0.2179
17 Construction	17852	16959	893	0.9500	0.0500
18 Electricity	6523	2915	3608	0.4469	0.5531
19 Transport and Communication	95950	91153	4798	0.9500	0.0500
20 Other private Services	70180	54506	15674	0.7767	0.2233
Sum	217404	188619	28785	0.8676	0.1324

ľ																												

cor	Private nsumption (C _j)	Budget shares, percent	Subsistance budget shares, percent	Subsistance quantities (γ)	Non-substiance budget shares (κj) percent	Non- subsistance consumption	Income elasticities
1 Cotton							
2 Coffee							
3 Tea							
4 Tobacco							
5 Cashew	480	0.12	0.15	267	0.10	213	0.81
6 Cassava	9396	2.38	4.80	8525	0.40	871	0.17
7 Maize	21779	5.52	10.22	18149	1.67	3630	0.30
8 Rice	6857	1.74	3.22	5715	0.53	1143	0.30
9 Sorghum	3428	0.87	1.60	2841	0.27	587	0.31
10 Beans	8774	2.22	4.25	7537	0.57	1237	0.26
11 Other Crops	88808	22.51	45.55	80862	3.66	7947	0.16
12 Livestock	35974	9.12	5.82	10339	11.81	25634	1.30
13 Forestry, fishing, hunting	2737	0.69	0.13	238	1.15	2499	1.66
14 Food and Beverages	67711	17.16	9.26	16439	23.63	51272	1.38
15 Textiles	31562	8.00	5.0	8877	10.45	22685	1.31
16 Other Manufacturing	71015	18.00	9.0	15978	25.36	55037	1.41
17 Construction	19331	4.90	0.1	178	8.83	19153	1.80
18 Electricity	887	0.22	0.1	178	0.33	709	1.45
19 Transport and Communicatio	n 10009	2.54	0.3	533	4.37	9476	1.72
20 Other private Services	15781	4.00	0.5	888	6.86	14894	1.72
Sum	394530	100.00	100.00	177542	100	216988	1.00

Table 10. Imports and the import equation parameters

	Composite	Production for		Elasticity of	CES	Share	Shift
	good	the domestic	Imports	substitution	parameter	parameter	parameter
	(XCj)	market (XD _j)	(lj)	(ɛ _j)	(τ _j)	(qj)	(Qj)
1 Cotton	5864	5864					
2 Coffee	90	90					
3 Tea	891	891					
4 Tobacco	372	331	41	0.9	0.1111	0.0894	1.38
5 Cashew	1044	1044					
6 Cassava	9396	9396					
7 Maize	26895	26895					
8 Rice	9690	9139	551	0.9	0.1111	0.0423	1,22
9 Sorghum	4118	4118					
10 Beans	10579	10579					
11 Other Crops	117023	111295	5728	0.9	0.1111	0.0357	1.19
12 Livestock	42826	41705	1121	0.6	0.6667	0.0024	0.06
13 Forestry, fishing, hunting	13770	13398	372	0.6	0.6667	0.0025	1.07
14 Food and Beverages	80972	77216	3756	0.6	0.6667	0.0064	1.12
15 Textiles	64184	57043	7141	0.6	0.6667	0.0304	1.28
16 Other Manufacturing	462486	218652	243834	0.6	0.6667	0.5453	2.00
17 Construction	57118	57118					
18 Electricity	7677	7677					
19 Transport and Communication	tion 34323	34323					
20 Other private Services	193354	175058	18296	0.3	2.3333	0.0006	1.15

Table 11, Export and the ex	port equation p	arameters					
	Gross production at		Production for the domestic	Elasticity of transformation	CET parameter	Share parameter	Shift parameter
	market prices (Xj)	Export (Aj)	market (XDj)	(Ω _j)	(pj)	(h _j)	(H _j)
1 Cotton	7114	1250	5864	0.9	2.1111	0.8478	2.70
2 Coffee	5873	5783	90	0.9	2.1111	0.0097	9.06
3 Tea	1232	341	891	0.9	2.1111	0.7441	2.26
4 Tobacco	995	664	331	0.9	2.1111	0.3157	2.14
5 Cashew	1380	336	1044	0,9	2.1111	0.7790	2.37
6 Cassava	9396		9396				
7 Maize	26895		26895				
8 Rice	9139		9139				
9 Sorghum	4118		4118				
10 Beans	10579		10579				
11 Other Crops	129970	18675	111295	0.9	2.1111	0.8790	2.95
12 Livestock	42560	855	41705	0.6	2.6667	0.9985	11.51
13 Forestry, fishing, hunting	16814	3416	13398	0.6	2.6667	0.9070	2.81
14 Food and Beverages	78384	1168	77216	0.6	2.6667	0.9991	13.86
15 Textiles	61482	4439	57043	0.6	2.6667	0.9860	5.20
16 Other Manufacturing	228104	9452	218652	0.6	2.6667	0.9947	7.33
17 Construction	57118		57118				
18 Electricity	7677		7677				
19 Transport and Communication		14000	34323	0.3	4.3333	0.9521	2.62
20 Other private Services	188580	13522	175058	0.3	4.3333	0.9998	7.51

Table 12. Government intermediate consumption coefficient

a_{Gj}

1Cotton	
2 Coffee	
3 Tea	
4 Tobacco	
5 Cashew	
6 Cassava	
7 Maize	
8 Rice	
9 Sorghum	
10 Beans	
11 Other Crops	
12 Livestock	0.0166
13 Forestry, fishing, hunting	0.0490
14 Food and Beverages	0.0122
15 Textiles	0.0169
16 Other Manufacturing	0.2859
17 Construction	0.0242
18 Electricity	0.1572
19 Transport and Communication	0.1094
20 Other private Services	0.3286

Utkommet i serien Rapporter fra Statistisk sentralbyrå etter 1. juli 1993 (RAPP)

Issued in the series Reports from Statistics Norway since 1 July 1993 (REP)

ISSN 0332-8422

Nr.	93/7	Dennis Fredriksen og Gina Spurkland: Framskriving av alders- og uføretrygd ved hjelp av mikrosimulerings- modellen MOSART. 1993-58s. 90 kr ISBN 82-537-3945-1	Nr.	94/1	Torstein Bye, Ådne Cappelen, Torbjørn Eika, Eystein Gjelsvik og Øystein Olsen: Noen konsekvenser av petroleumsvirksomheten for norsk økonomi. 1994-54s. 95 kr ISBN 82-537-3956-7
-	93/20	Dag Kolsrud: Stochastic Simulation of KVARTS91. 1993-70s. 95 kr ISBN 82-537-3952-4	-	94/2	Wenche Drzwi, Lisbeth Lerskau, Øystein Olsen og Nils Martin Stølen: Tilbud og
-	93/23	Torbjørn Eika: Norsk økonomi 1988-1991: - Hvorfor steg arbeids- ledigheten så mye? 1993-38s. 75 kr			etterspørsel etter ulike typer arbeidskraft. 1994-56s. 95 kr ISBN 82-537-3950-8
-	93/24	ISBN 82-537-3912-5 Kristin Rypdal: Anthropogenic Emissions	-	94/3	Hilde-Marie Branæs Zakariassen: Tilbud av arbeidskraft i Norge En empirisk analyse på kvartalsdata for
		of the Greenhouse Gases CO ₂ , CH ₄ and N ₂ O in Norway A Documentation of Methods of Estimation, Activity Data and		94/4	perioden 1972 til 1990. 1994-100s. 110 kr ISBN 82-537-3958-3
		Emission Factors. 1993-65s. 90 kr ISBN 82-537-3917-6	-	9 4/4	Resultatkontroll jordbruk 1993 Tiltak mot avrenning av næringssalter og jorderosjon. 1994-96s. 95 kr ISBN 82-537-3966-4
-	93/25	Skatter og overføringer til private Historisk oversikt over satser mv. Årene 1975-1993. 1993-75s. 90 kr ISBN 82-537-3922-2	-	94/5	Haakon Vennemo: A Growth Model of Norway with a Two-way Link to the Environment. 1994-57s. 95 kr ISBN 82-537-3985-0
-	93/26	Thor Olav Thoresen: Fordelings- virkninger av overføringene til barnefamilier Beregninger ved skattemodellen LOTTE. 1993-42s.	-	94/6	Odd Frank Vaage: Feriereiser 1992/93. 1994-49s. 80 kr ISBN 82-537-3983-3
-	93/27	75 kr ISBN 82-537-3923-0 Odd Frank Vaage: Holdninger til norsk	-	94/7	Magnar Lillegård: Prisindekser for boligmarkedet. 1994-31s. 80 kr ISBN 82-537-3992-3
	20121	utviklingshjelp 1993. 1993-41s.75 kr ISBN 82-537-3931-1	-	94/8	Grete Dahl, Else Flittig og Jorunn Lajord: Inntekt, levekår og sysselsetting for
-	93/28	Kjetil Sørlie: Bofasthet, flytting og utdanningsnivå i kommunene Åtte årskull fulgt gjennom aldersfasen 15-35 år Del 1: Østlandet. 1993-174s. 115			pensjonister og sysselsetting for folketrygden. 1994-57s. 95 kr ISBN 82-537-3998-2
-	93/29	kr ISBN 82-537-3935-4 Kjetil Sørlie: Bofasthet, flytting og	-	94/9	Leif Brubakk: Estimering av en makrokonsumfunksjon for ikke-varige goder 1968-1991. 1994-42s. 80 kr
		utdanningsnivå i kommunene Åtte årskull fulgt gjennom aldersfasen 15-35 år Del 2: Sørlandet og	_	94/10	ISBN 82-537-4003-4 Marie Arneberg og Thor Olav Thoresen:
		Vestlandet. 1993-179s. 115 kr ISBN 82-537-3936-2		2.1.0	Syke- og fødselspenger i mikrosimuleringsmodellen LOTTE. 1994-37s. 80 kr ISBN 82-537-4026-3
-	93/30	Kjetil Sørlie: Bofasthet, flytting og utdanningsnivå i kommunene Åtte årskull fulgt gjennom aldersfasen 15-35 år Del 3: Trøndelag og Nord-Norge. 1993-165s. 115 kr ISBN 82-537-3937-0	Nr.	94/11	Klaus Mohn: Monetarism and Structural Adjustment - The Case of Mozambique. 1994-48s. 80 kr ISBN 82-537-4005-0
-	93/31	Erling Holmøy, Torbjørn Hægeland, Øystein Olsen og Birger Strøm: Effektive satser for næringsstøtte. 1993-178s. 115 kr ISBN 82-537-3947-8	-	94/12	Tom Langer Andersen, Ole Tom Djupskås og Tor Arnt Johnsen: Kraftkontrakter til alminnelig forsyning i 1993. 1994-53s. 80 kr ISBN 82-537-4007-7
			-	94/14	Asbjørn Aaheim: Inntekter fra utvinning av norske naturressurser Noen teoretiske betraktninger. 1994-30s. 80 kr ISBN 82-537-4022-0

- Nr. 94/15 Trine Dale og Arne Faye: Utenlandske statsborgere og Kommunestyre- og Fylkestingsvalget 1991. 1994-100s. 110 kr ISBN 82-537-4025-5
 - 94/16 Tom-André Johansson: En økonometrisk analyse av lagertilpasningen i norske industrisektorer. 1994-46s. 80 kr ISBN 82-537-4027-1
 - 94/17 Lasse Sigbjørn Stambøl: Flytting, utdanning og arbeidsmarked 1986-1990 En interaktiv analyse av sammenhengen mellom endringer i flyttetilbøyelighet og arbeidsmarked. 1994-60s. 95 kr ISBN 82-537-4035-2
 - 94/18 Anne Brendemoen, Mona I. Hansen og Bodil M. Larsen: Framskriving av utslipp til luft i Norge En modell- dokumentasjon. 1994-56s. 95 kr ISBN 82-537-4036-0
 - 94/19 Erling Holmøy, Gunnar Nordén and Birger Strøm: MSG-5 A Complete Description of the System of Equations. 1994-209s. 155 kr ISBN 82-537-4039-5
 - 94/20 Ragnhild Balsvik and Anne Brendemoen: A Computable General Equilibrium Model for Tanzania. Documentation of Model, the 1990-Social Accounting Matrix and Calibration

.

C

Returadresse: Statistisk sentralbyrå Postboks 8131 Dep. N-0033 Oslo שימיושיושע שבוויו מושעו מ

Publikasjonen kan bestilles fra:

Statistisk sentralbyrå Salg- og abonnementservice Postboks 8131 Dep. N-0033 Oslo

Telefon: 22 86 49 64 22 86 48 87 Telefaks: 22 86 49 76

eller: Akademika - avdeling for offentlige publikasjoner Møllergt. 17 Postboks 8134 Dep. N-0033 Oslo

Telefon: 22 11 67 70 Telefaks: 22 42 05 51

ISBN 82-537-4041-7 ISSN 0332-8422

Pris kr 80,00



